REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA PACKET

NOVEMBER 19, 2018

POSTED: NOVEMBER 15, 2018

Regular Board Meeting – November 19, 2018, 7:00 p.m.
Carmichael Water District Board Room
7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard
Carmichael, CA 95608
AGENDA
The Board will discuss all items on its agenda, and may take action on any of those items, including information items
and continued items. The Board may also discuss other items that do not appear on its agenda, but will not act on
those items unless action is urgent, and a resolution is passed by a two-thirds vote declaring the need for action arose
after posting of the agenda.

The Board of Directors welcomes and encourages participation in meetings. Public testimony may be
given on any agenda item as it is called and limited to three minutes per speaker. Matters not on the
posted agenda may be addressed under Public Comment. Please fill out a Speaker Card and turn it in at
the staff table, either before or during the meeting. Public comment rules and procedures are on the
back of the speaker card.
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you have a disability and need a disability-related
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the General Manager at 483-2452.
Requests must be made as early as possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the meeting.
CALL TO ORDER AND STATEMENT REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: President Leidy
FY 2017-2018 Annual District Audit Presentation performed by Richardson & Company.
(Information included in agenda packet)
DISTRICT REPORTS:
1.

General Manager’s Written Report

2.

District Activity Written Report Presented by the Assistant General Manager

PUBLIC COMMENT:
3.

Public Comment
Any member of the public may address the Board on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board.

CONSENT CALENDAR:
Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted on by the Board in one motion.
Should any Board member, staff member, or interested person request discussion on an item, the Board will consider
the item separate from the Consent Calendar.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting – October 15, 2018
Paid Expenditures Report – October 2018
2019 Regular Board Meeting Schedule
2019 District Holiday Schedule

ACTION CALENDAR:
8. FY 2017-2018 Annual District Audit has been performed by Richardson & Company. Richardson &
Company’s report to the Board regarding internal controls is provided for the Board’s consideration
Management staff recommends that the FY 2017-2018 District Audit be accepted by the Board of Directors.
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9.

Resolution 11192018-1 A Resolution of Director Appreciation
Management staff recommends that the Board of Directors approves Resolution 11192018-1 A Resolution of
Director Appreciation for Carmichael Water District Director John Wallace.
10. Resolution 11192018-2 A Resolution of Appreciation
Management staff recommends that the Board of Directors approves Resolution 11192018-2 A Resolution of
Appreciation for Association of California Water Agencies Executive Director Timothy Quinn.
11. Nomination for Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) Membership on the
Special District Advisory Committee (SDAC)
Management staff recommends that the Board of Directors selects a Director to serve on the SDAC.
STAFF REPORTS:
12. Director’s Expense Reimbursement Summary for October
GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE/INFORMATION:
13. United States Environmental Protection Agency – Final Draft Bay-Delta Plan Update for the Lower
San Joaquin River and Southern Delta Letter dated October 31, 2018
14. News Articles
15. Director’s Written and/or Oral Reports
a. Director Wallace – Association of California Water Agencies
CALENDARS AND COMMITTEES:
16. Meetings Calendars:
a. 2018 Board Meeting Calendar
b. Meeting/Conference Calendar – December
c. Meeting/Conference Calendar – January
17. Board Representatives Committees Assignments
The next meeting of the Board of Directors will be a Regular Board Meeting held on:
Monday, December 17, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.
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General Manager’s Report
by Steve Nugent
November 2018
Administration:
Aerojet Activity: Groundwater Extraction and Treatment (GET) GET LA and GET LB are
operating as designed and are meeting water quality requirements. The Regional Water Quality
Control Board (RWQCB) reported that Aerojet is beginning the process of closing down GET LA.
Ongoing and Upcoming:
1. Regional Water Authority (RWA) Regional Water Reliability Plan – working
2. Voluntary Settlement Agreement (VSA) – working
3. La Vista Tank Project Study – working
4. Intertie with Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD) – working
5. Golden State Water Company (GSWC) water reliability activities – working
6. Sacramento Suburban Water District (SSWD)/CWD – Groundwater Wells discussion
7. SSWD/San Juan Water District (SJWD) – investigating ways to work together including
merger
Voluntary Settlement Agreement (VSA): The District is participating in this process. The goal is to
reach agreement that would remove the need to go through the Bay Delta Conservation Plan
(BDCP) process. The key ask from this region is the Water Forum Flow Management Standard.
BDCP needs 50,000 acre-feet (AF) from the American River during all year types (normal, wet, or
dry). Meetings continue with State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) staff and Board
members. Staff from SWRCB is holding onto the unimpaired flow criteria methodology. It is our
understanding that it will be released in December. Negotiations are continuing and the region is
countering with our own proposal. The American River group submitted our proposal to the
Department of Water Resources (DWR) before the deadline but we have not received any
comments. The Governor has asked the Board to delay their vote until 12/12/18 to give additional
time for the VSA.
The major concern I have for CWD under the unimpaired flow criteria will be our ability to use our
surface water rights during the summer. Under the SWRCB proposed methodology, CWD will
have access to surface water only 60% of the time in June, only 2% of the time for July, and 0% of
the time for August. Even with our use of GET water, the District would face major restrictions
during the summer months.
GSWC: Staff met with GSWC to discuss the potential of sharing water resources to help prepare
both agencies for drought, whether they are actual or regulatory. Staff is working on an MOU for
another project with GSWC that can yield up to 8,000 acre feet (AF). This 8,000 AF would be
used for increased reliability for both agencies.
SSWD: Lynette Moreno and I met with Dan and Mike from SSWD to begin discussions on the
potential of developing joint groundwater wells. At the meeting, SSWD spoke about their plans of
replacing their groundwater wells. They liked the idea of partnering on facilities. I will be sending
them a letter and a copy of the contract between CWD and GSWC so they can see an example of
how that kind of partnership can work.

SSWD/SJWD: On October 29, 2018, SSWD and SJWD held a joint meeting between SSWD,
SJWD, Fair Oaks Water District (FOWD), Citrus Height Water District (CHWD), CWD, Rio Linda
(RLCD), Del Paso Manor Water District (DPMWD), and City of Folsom to discuss reliability/
reorganization studies and the next steps of the analysis including potential expansion to include
additional participating agencies. Lynette Moreno attended the meeting led by Hilary Straus from
CHWD and he put together a Water Supply Management Collaborative Proposal. Hilary’s
proposal includes the following:
1. Initial Scoping
2. Technical Advisory Committee Formation
3. Principal & Stakeholder Agency Study Approval
4. Explore Options, Alternatives, and Criteria
5. Identify Preferred Option
6. Plan Adoption
7. Plan Implementation
The meeting was surprising. I believe most attendees thought there would be a presentation from
SSWD or SJWD on their discussion about working together or merger. However, the meeting
was led by another agency, which was a little confusing. All the same agencies are participating
in the region’s water reliability effort underway. I really don’t see the need to duplicate the effort.
If the goal is about partnering or sharing resources for increased reliability then I believe this is a
worthwhile activity, but if we are just going to do another study I’m not sure that adds value.
Associations:
Association California Water Agencies (ACWA): ACWA is sponsoring two bills: Funding for Safe
Drinking Water; and providing changes in compliance requirements with new standards.
RWA: Ryan Ojakian is the new Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Program Manager. Beginning
in January, the Advocacy Program will move from subscription based to under the RWA standard
programs. Chris Nelson will be the contact for the program for CWD.
At the RWA Board meeting, the Board approved staff to work with counsel to prepare a resolution
to comply with “minimum payment” options under Public Employees Medical and Health Care Act
(PEMHCA).
Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA): No Report.
Meetings (# meetings) with:
 Tully and Young (2)
 VSA Process (4)
 Kennedy Jenks (1)
 Somach (2)
 GSWC (1)
 SSWD (1)
 SSWD, SJWD, FOWD, CHWD, DPMWD, RLCD, Folsom (1)
 JPIA (1)
 Alex Peterson (1)
 Tour of Bajamont WTP (2)
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District Activity Report
October 2018
District Overview:
In-house staff training: Training is continuing on an ongoing basis by the department managers and through
online training. Departmental meetings are ongoing focused on training, compliance, safety, customer service
and District updates. Individual manager and exempt employee meetings are continuing on a one-on-one
basis to discuss and review budget, operations and activities.
Meetings attended (17):
 Supervisors/HR/IT (4)
 Interviews (2 days)
 Staff (4)
 Staff Meeting (1)
 Engineering (1)
 Audit/OPEB (3)
 Joint Powers Insurance Authority (1)
 Sacramento Suburban Water District (1)
Information Technology:
Infrastructure and Planning: Preparation for split server project for software manufacturer’s best practice
recommendation; ongoing system improvements to ensure optimal performance.
Routine: Troubleshoot issues; normal IT duties as scheduled or as needed.
Human Resources:
Benefits/Payroll: Assisted employees with benefits related issues.
Compliance: Completed required reporting and postings; created/updated policies, processes,
documentation, etc. as needed.
Personnel: Researched and handled personnel issues, questions, documentation; 2 new employees; 1
position open (interviews, offered, and accepted)
Security/Building Maintenance: Assisted with District needs.
Public Information Activity
Public Outreach:
Upcoming Events:
 Holliday Gift Drive – The District is participating in the California Highway Patrol’s Annual CHiPs for
Kids Toy Drive and the Annual Be a Santa to a Senior Program. Gifts for seniors and children are
being accepted at the District’s office through December 14, 2018.
 2019 Water Efficiency Calendar Contest – The 2019 Water Efficiency Calendar Contest judging
committee met in October and chose 14 winners for the 2019 calendar. The winning entries have
been posted on the District’s website. An awards ceremony will be held at the District on January 28,
2019 at 5:30 pm.
Website Updates:
 Board Documents, Employment, Outreach Events, Request for Proposals, Resources & Tips.
 2,129 users accessed the District’s website. Of those, new users totaled 1,595.
Social Media:
 The District’s YouTube video content received 489 views in October. This is a 17% increase
compared to September.
 The District produced video, “Day in the Life of a Water Treatment Operator”, was posted on
WaterOperator.org’s website as a featured video. WaterOperator.org provides top resources from the
internet for water system operators. The District’s video was credited for showing what it is really like
to be a water treatment plant operator.
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Water Use Reductions: Although the District is no longer reporting water use reduction data to the State
Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB), staff will continue to calculate and inform the Board of water use
reductions.
Utilizing the SWRCB formula, staff calculated the following data for August 2015 to October 2018:
R-GPCD
174

Monthly
Reduction
16%

Cumulative
Reduction
25%

Regional Water Meter Replacement Program: The District is continuing to participate in a joint meter study
along with Citrus Heights Water District (CHWD), Fair Oak Water District, Orange Vale Water Company,
Regional Water Authority, Sacramento Suburban Water District, San Juan Water District, along with the City
of Sacramento and Golden State Water Company. The District is participating in the process as a Level 1
participant, which allows the District to monitor the process, be involved in drafting a request for proposal, be
involved in selection of consultants, and be a participant in the work group. At Level 1, there is no cost
commitment to the District. The work group has received six (6) proposals.
In November, Chris Nelson attended two meetings regarding the meter replacement program and consultant
selection process. On November 15, 2018, the group will meet again to complete the following:
 Rank the top proposals;
 Identify firms to interview;
 Determine date(s)/time(s) to interview the finalists; and
 Finalize the interview questions.
Standard Outreach and Water Efficiency Activities:
Outreach And Water
Efficiency Activities
Presentations
Public Outreach Events
Water Waste
Water Waste Fines
Customer Assistance
Water Efficiency Surveys

Month
0
3
19
0
2
11

FYTD
4
11
160
0
116
108

Water Treatment and Production Activity
Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Maintenance: Production Staff performed Clean-in-Place (CIP’s) on the
primary membrane units in October.
Training: Two members of the Production Department completed a test preparation class for the upcoming
SWRCB Water Treatment Operator Exam. Also, the department staff completed awareness training on Slips,
Trips & Falls in October.
Compliance: The Division of Drinking Water completed their on-site inspection of the Bajamont Water
Treatment Plant and well sites in October. This is a comprehensive inspection required for all sites that
produce drinking water. The inspection went very well with no major issues.
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Production Charts and Graphs:

CWD Monthly Water Production, Million Gallons (MG) 2011-2019
Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

2018-19

387.57

361.56

314.04

259.22

2017-18

399.61

383.76

323.74

270.59

140.87

129.07

113.92

117.16

115.88

148.80

258.57

335.23

2737.20

2016-17

357.82

353.35

2015-16

287.66

283.68

299.41

193.38

123.16

115.61

113.74

96.26

116.84

123.76

268.14

332.52

2493.72

259.99

213.09

128.89

107.92

100.49

97.72

107.12

148.87

219.44

308.84

2014-15

373.21

2263.71

338.74

294.65

240.50

153.63

116.73

120.74

110.98

168.88

175.83

214.05

255.44

2563.38

2013-14
2012-13

470.97

434.57

349.04

306.94

212.49

160.96

158.30

109.17

132.71

164.82

283.33

358.07

3141.37

474.75

465.78

391.92

287.92

150.24

123.99

123.20

128.54

186.95

233.28

370.15

411.86

3348.58

2011-12

448.20

454.95

402.18

237.81

162.12

158.97

158.05

136.99

140.45

153.99

321.46

418.58

3193.75

Avg.

399.97

384.55

329.73

251.18

153.06

130.46

126.92

113.83

138.40

164.19

276.45

345.79

2820.24

Daily

12.90

12.40

10.98

8.10

5.10

4.21

4.09

4.07

4.46

5.47

8.92

11.53

Totals
1322.39

Oct-18

Sep-18

Aug-18

Jul-18

Jun-18

May-18

Apr-18

Mar-18

Feb-18

Jan-18

Nov-17

Oct-17

Sep-17

Aug-17

Dec-17

PERIOD 7/1/2017- 10/31/2018

700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0
Jul-17

X ONE THOUSAND

FY

PRODUTION - 100 CUBIC FEET UNITS

Production
Production from same month last year
System Monthly Production Average
Peak Day – Oct 2nd

Up/ Down
Down

Month
4%
8.4 MGD
9.5 MGD

8 Year Running
Average
7%

Up/ Down
Down

Surface Water

Oct-18

Sep-18

Aug-18

Jul-18

Jun-18

May-18

Apr-18

Mar-18

Feb-18

Jan-18

Dec-17

Nov-17

Oct-17

Sep-17

Aug-17

500
400
300
200
100
0
Jul-17

X one million

CWD Combined Surface & Ground Water Usage

Ground Water
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CWD Total Production Allocation
Surface Water
Groundwater

72%
28%

C.W.D. Combined Surface & Groundwater Monthly Water Totals for FY 2018/2019
(Information is in million gallons)
Location

Active Wells

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

Oct-18

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

52.741

51.737

49.608

46.988

201.07

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.00

Garfield

55.954

54.478

43.260

.435

154.13

La Vista

50.651

67.184

65.353

25.894

209.08

Ground Water

159.35

173.40

158.22

73.32

490.97

Surface Water *

367.89

327.35

290.94

325.41

564.28

GSWC Delivery

139.67

139.19

135.12

139.51

553.49

CWD Surface

228.22

188.16

155.82

185.90

758.10

CWD Monthly Total

387.57

361.56

314.04

259.22

1322.38

Barrett School
Willow Park
Winding Way

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Totals

*Total production water from the Bajamont Water Treatment Plant (BWTP)

Well Sites, Reservoirs & Distribution System: The WTP provided 72% of the water supply for CWD in
October. CWD wells supplied the remaining 28%. La Vista Well and Willow Park Well are currently in
operation. Garfield Well was shut-off on October 2, 2018 due to decreased seasonal demand.
GSWC Delivery: CWD delivered 139.51 MG to GSWC in October. There were no interruptions in water
deliveries.
2018-19 CWD Remediated Groundwater Usage in Acre/Feet (AF)
Month
July
August
September
October

GET LA & LB
Discharge

GET LA Irrigation

129.19
134.10
139.19
147.68

Water Quality Activity
Backflow Assemblies Tested
Failed Tests
Water Quality
Taste and Odor
Color
Turbidity/Air
High Pressure
Low Pressure

30.23
21.00
23.91
15.19
Month
52
2

FYTD
221
14

0
1
0
0
0

0
5
0
0
0

Total

Cumulative Total

159.42
155.10
163.10
162.87

159.42
314.52
477.62
640.49

There was one (1) water quality complaint in October for Color. The area where the complaint occurred was
investigated and thoroughly flushed.
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Billing Department Activity
Billing: Currently tracking at approximately 0.5% up from the same Billing Month last year.
Billing
Billing
Month
Period
Previous FY
Aug-2017 June-July
Sep-2017 July-Aug
Oct-2017 Aug-Sept
Nov-2017 Sept-Oct
Dec-2017 Oct-Nov
Jan-2018 Nov-Dec
Feb-2018 Dec-Jan
Mar-2018 Jan-Feb
Apr-2018 Feb-Mar
May-2018 Mar-Apr
Jun-2018 Apr-May
Jul-2018 May-June
Totals

Flat Rate
$
$
$
$

36,776
17,309
38,208
17,159

$

109,452

Service
Charge
$
$
$
$

505,164
532,400
505,164
532,717

$ 2,075,445

FY 17-18
FY 18-19
Totals
Totals
$ 10,257,364
$ 558,962 $
541,427 $
559,475
$ 654,322
1,204,032
$ 593,278
1,136,650
$ 496,467
1,046,343
$ 2,303,029 $ 10,798,791 $ 3,946,499
Usage

Note: Billing chart represents cycle billings only and does not include collection or adjustment activities. Regular billings for July
and August are split between two fiscal years reporting water sales for the period of June and July.

Consumption * 1 Unit = 100 Cubic Feet = 748 Gallons:
Billing
Usage
Month
Period
Aug-2018 June-July
Sep-2018 July-Aug
Oct-2018 Aug-Sept
Nov-2018 Sept-Oct
Dec-2018 Oct-Nov
Jan-2019 Nov-Dec
Feb-2019 Dec-Jan
Mar-2019 Jan-Feb
Apr-2019 Feb-Mar
May-2019 Mar-Apr
Jun-2019 Apr-May
Jul-2019 May-June
Totals

Usage By
Unit *
399,258
467,373
423,770
354,619

1,645,020

Collections: Processed & Outstanding Activity
Past Due 48 Hours
Notices Notices Shut Offs
A/R $
Date
951
126
17
Previous FY Avg.
$ 108,809
Jul-2018
973
115
19
$ 95,452
Aug-2018
921
143
18
$ 100,975
Sep-2018
868
129
26
$ 185,949
Oct-2018
1132
171
18
$ 102,020
Nov-2018
Dec-2018
Jan-2019
Feb-2019
Mar-2019
Apr-2019
May-2019
Jun-2019

Liens $ Liens #
12
$ 4,948
$ 2,999
8
$ 3,410
9
$ 3,369
9
$ 4,046
11
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Distribution Department Activity
Gary, Susan, McClaren, and Arden Way Mainline Project: The sewer variance request was approved by
SWRCB. The permit was signed and delivered. Sacramento Area Sewer District (SASD) has approved the
District’s deviation at three separate sites. The mandatory pre-bid conference was held on October 26, 2018
and the bid opening took place on November 1, 2018. Rawles Engineering Inc. is the apparent low bidder at
$920,594. West Yost Associates’ engineering estimate was $1,086,160 for this project.
SSWD/CWD Intertie Upgrade: The permit has been submitted to Sacramento County and is pending approval of
structural calculations and electrical drawings. There has been a delay in the coordination of all the vendors
required to coordinate this effort. Staff will continue to update the Board on progress and project timeline as this
permit is approved and the project moves forward.
Sacramento County Projects: Sacramento County improvements require any permitted public utility to
relocate its encroachment at the utility’s expense within the time specified per Section 1463 of the Streets and
Highways Code.
Sacramento County now completes the entire design process of all projects and places them in a que with
planning stages: A - preliminary; B – 60% design; and C – ready for construction. When funding comes
available, the County projects are ready to go out to bid with little or no notice to the community or utilities.
The Fair Oaks Blvd. Widening Project Phase 3 is a good example of this process that moved the project start
date ahead of its original scheduled time.
After speaking with one of Sacramento County’s head engineers, the County may receive accelerated federal
grant funding money that may move certain projects ahead of their projected and/or scheduled start dates.
The District has established an annual budget for District required work for “Sacramento County Projects” in
its Distribution PSM budget and will need to consider establishing a reserve fund for County accelerated
District requirements.
The following are scheduled Sacramento County projects.
 Garfield Ave Bike Lane, Sidewalk, Street Light and Storm Drain Project: I have received the “C” plans
for this project. By working directly with the County’s engineer I was able to lessen the overall impact
to the District by meeting the County’s engineer on site and providing water main depths at three
storm drain crossings. The County has revised the storm drain drop inlet elevations to cross over the
existing water mains. Construction has been deferred until spring of 2018. The required “Letter of
Liability” has been submitted to the County. Department staff has relocated three (3) service
connections for this project. The remaining relocations will take place during the construction of the
project. The only thing remaining for the District is a valve relocation.
The Department of Transportation (SacDOT) has awarded Construction Contract No. 4406
(Garfield Bike Lane and Pedestrian Connectivity Project) to Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. to
begin on April 2, 2019


Landis Ave. Storm Drain Improvement Project: This project is in the “A” planning stage and facility
relocations are unknown at this time. **On Hold**



Palm Dr. Drainage Improvement Project: This project is in the “B” planning stage and could move to
construction at any time. **On Hold**



Fair Oaks Blvd. Beautification and Widening Project: Marconi Ave to Landis Ave. “B” plans for this
project have been received and reviewed by staff. This project has been delayed until spring 2019.
**Pending**

Training and Personnel: Employees are receiving on-going training as part of the distribution department
training program.


Kyle Durham and Will Bottimore have successfully passed the SWRCB D-2 exam.

Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance: All department vehicles and equipment are being serviced and
maintained to prolong their useful life.
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PSM and O&M Activity
Capital Replacements (PSM)
Meter Change Outs
Meter Cut Ins
Meter Drop Ins
Service Lines
Main Line Valves
Fire Hydrants
Repairs/Maintenance (O&M)
R900i Meter Register Change Outs
Service Lines
Main Lines
Fire Hydrant
Box and Lid Replace/Repair
Customer Assist
Assist w/Private Repairs
Water Waste
Misc. Repairs

Month

YTD

2
1
0
7
0
2

11
2
1
35
1
2

591
5
6
2
13
89
26
2
10

990
20
17
3
35
377
95
12
27
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Regular Board Meeting – October 15, 2018, 7:00 p.m.
Carmichael Water District Board Room
7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard
Carmichael, CA 95608
MINUTES
The Board of Directors of the Carmichael Water District met in Regular Session this 15th day of October at
7:00 p.m. at the District Office located at 7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Carmichael.
ATTENDANCE:
Directors: Roy Leidy, Ron Greenwood, Mark Emmerson, John Wallace, Paul Selsky
Staff:
Steve Nugent, Lynette Moreno, Chris Nelson, Shelby Golden
Guest:
Zero (0) guests
Public:
Zero (0) members of the public
CALL TO ORDER: President Leidy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
DISTRICT REPORTS:
1.

General Manager’s Written Report
Discussed with Board

2.

District Activity Written Report Presented by the Assistant General Manager
Discussed with Board

PUBLIC COMMENT:
3.

Public Comment
No Public Comment.
CONSENT CALENDAR:
4. Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting – September 17, 2018
5. Paid Expenditures Report – September 2018
M/S Wallace / Greenwood to approve the Consent Calendar Items 4-5.
Discussed with Board
Mark Emmerson
Ron Greenwood
Roy Leidy
John Wallace
Paul Selsky
Board Totals:
Passed Unanimously:

Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye







Nay
Nay
Nay
Nay
Nay

Ayes:
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Nays:

Yes



Absent
Absent
Absent
Absent
Absent
0

Absent:

Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
0

Abstain:

0

ACTION CALENDAR:
6.

In-House Committees
Management staff recommends that the Board of Directors:
1. Approves the title change of the Employee Relations Committee to Compensation Committee; and
2. Appoint Directors to serve on the identified In-House Committees for expired terms.
Discussed with Board
President Leidy approved the title change of the Employee Relations Committee to the Compensation
Committee, appointed Director Greenwood to the Water Sales Committee to replace Paul Selsky for fiscal year
(FY) Term 2018-2021, approved renewal of Director Leidy’s expired term for the Compensation Committee
for FY 2018-2020, and approved renewal of Director Emmerson’s expired term for the Finance Committee for
FY Term 2018-2020.

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 15, 2018
STAFF REPORTS/INFORMATION:
7.

Director’s Expense Reimbursement Summary for September
Discussed with Board

GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE/INFORMATION:
8.

Senator Jim Nielsen – Senate Bill 845 Letter dated September 21, 2018
Discussed with Board

9.

News Articles
Discussed with Board

10. Director’s Written and/or Oral Reports
Director Emmerson: No Report
Director Greenwood:
a. Regional Water Authority Executive Committee
Director Leidy:
a. Water Forum
Director Wallace:
a. Association of California Water Agencies
Director Selsky: No Report
CALENDARS AND COMMITTEES:
11. Meetings Calendars:
a. 2018 Board Meeting Calendar
b. Meeting/Conference Calendar – November
c. Meeting/Conference Calendar – December
12. Board Representatives Committees Assignments
ADJOURNMENT: The regular meeting was adjourned at: 8:05 p.m.
The next meeting of the Board of Directors will be a Regular Board Meeting held on:
Monday, November 19, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.

Roy Leidy, President

Steve Nugent, Secretary
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
PAID EXPENDITURES REPORT
OCTOBER 2018
Payee
ACWA
ACWA/JPIA
Analytical Environmental Services
Andrew Black
APS Environmental, Inc.
Arrow Construction
ATEEM Electrical Engineering
Avalon Custodial Care
Backflow Distributors
Baudville
Brower Mechanical, Inc.
Bryce Watkins
BSK Associates
Bulbman
CA-NV AWWA
Cal-Neva Construction Services
CA Dept of Tax & Fee Administration
California Surveying and Drafting Supply
CalPERS
CalPERS
CalPERS
Capital Barricade Safety & Signs
Carmichael Times Newspaper
Carmichael Tire & Auto Repair
Carquest Auto Parts
Cisco Air Systems
Clark Pest Control
Comcast
County of Sacramento
Data Prose
David Biagi
DSL Creative
Employee Relations
Evoqua Water Technologies
FedEx
Gempler's
George Richmond
Grainger
Guardian
Haase Landscapes, Inc
Hach Company
Harrington Industrial Plastics
Harris Industrial Gases
Harrold Ford
Home Depot
Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Inland Business Systems
Irrigation Association Members
Kennedy Jenks Consultants
Law Office of Perry Israel
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore

Description
Dental, Vision, Life, and Worker's Compensation
General Engineering
Accounting Services
Wash Rack Maintenance
Concrete
CIP - SSWD Intertie
Janitorial
Repairs - Meters/Equipment Maint
Travel & Meetings
HVAC & Plumbing
Training & Certification Reimbursement
Water Quality
Maintenance Supplies
Training & Certification
CIP - Collectors Restoration
Sales & Use Tax
GIS Software & Licensing
Employer Pension Contribution
Deferred Compensation Expense
Medical Benefits
Safety
Books & Subscriptions
Vehicle Repairs
Vehicle Repairs
CIP - WTP Compressor
Pest Control
Telecommunications - 2 months
Easements
Billing Postage & Expense
Training & Certification Reimbursement
Website Maintenance
Exams & Screenings
CFM Filtrate Membranes
Postage & Delivery Service
Uniforms
Training & Certification Reimbursement
CMF Filtrate, Safety Supplies
Long Term Disability - 2 months
Landscape - 2 months
Inventory - meters
Lab Chemicals & Supplies
Equipment Rental
Vehicles - Distribution (2 Truck Replacements)
Safety Supplies, Shop Supplies, Tools
Fuel
Equipment Repairs & Maint
Training & Certification
CIP - LaVista Tank Project Study/Modeling-GIS Maint
Board Legal Services
Board Legal Services

Payments
270.00
95,580.98
1,800.52
325.00
725.00
2,656.50
8,120.00
750.00
1,900.91
102.11
2,067.00
280.00
4,026.00
72.07
375.00
12,150.00
148.00
300.00
12,529.23
10,892.74
55,144.78
1,155.57
42.00
748.17
159.40
1,133.73
238.00
1,544.06
178.50
3,377.11
180.00
288.75
135.50
1,945.76
52.86
156.97
105.00
1,236.24
1,103.15
2,518.00
619.30
2,397.84
168.05
50,595.82
907.59
3,040.79
1,687.35
390.00
8,729.04
250.00
2,075.00
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Payee
Marc Mathews
Mark McClintock
Network Design Associates, Inc.
Occu-Med
Official Payments Corp
Olin Corp
Overland, Pacific & Cutler, Inc
Pace Supply Corp.
Patron Trucking, Inc.
Paymentus
PG&E
PG&E Non-Energy Collection Unit
Pitney Bowes
Ramos Environmental Services
Rawles Engineering
Regional Water Authority
Sacramento Bee
Sacramento County
Sacramento County Bldg Inspection
Sacramento County Recorder
Sacramento County Utilities
Sacramento LAFCO
Safety Center Inc
Same Day Signs
Sierra Chemical Company
Sierra Office Supply
SMUD
Somach Simmons & Dunn
Specialty Answering Service
Sprint
Stovall Ranch Trucking
Sunworks United Inc
Synectic Technologies
Thinkage LTD
Tully & Young, Inc.
Ultra Truck Works Inc
Union Bank - MUFG
Univar, Inc.
USA Bluebook
Verizon Wireless
Waste Management of Sacramento
West Audio Productions
West Yost Associates
WestAmerica Bank- Petty Cash
WorkSmart Automation Inc

Description
Training & Certification Reimbursement
Training & Certification Reimbursement
Network Monitoring & Risk Assessment
Exams & Screenings
Billing & Postage Expense
Chemicals
CIP - SSWD Intertie
Inventory - meters
Road Materials
Bank Charges: AR Payment Processing Fees
Utilities
COTP Service Costs
Postage & Delivery Service
Solids Removal
Service Line Replacements
Training & Certification
Books & Subscriptions
Property Taxes
CIP - SSWD Intertie
Lien Release Fees
Utilities
Fees
Training & Certification
Equipment Maint & Repair
Chemicals
Office Supplies
Power
Board Legal Services
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Spoils Removal
Solar Maintenance
Telecommunications - Telephone System Upgrade
SCADA Maintenance
Board Legal Services
Vehicles - Tool Box/Equipment
COP - Bond Payment
Chemicals- Sodium Hypochlorite & Casutic Soda
Inventory - Meters
Telecommunications
Utilities
Outreach
Engineering - ML Project
Computer Hardware, Office Supplies, Travel & Meetings
SCADA Maintenance

Check Register Total
Payroll

Total Paid Expenditures

Employee Wages, Director Pay, Payroll Taxes

Payments
39.95
39.95
675.00
541.00
35.85
6,386.35
912.50
16,219.98
5,904.07
4,509.00
77.42
10.00
161.59
683.67
3,060.00
600.00
700.38
2,546.50
1,452.97
16.00
99.31
1,569.00
600.00
45.26
781.16
1,450.45
120,704.42
6,913.01
199.00
14.99
11,088.00
750.00
6,627.91
600.00
430.00
5,568.64
1,743,397.02
8,000.93
1,582.78
684.99
384.04
1,500.00
10,465.75
922.05
1,450.00
2,267,776.28
204,612.06

2,472,388.34
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2019 Regular Board Meeting Schedule
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

28
25
18
15 (Board Compensation Public Hearing)
20 (Budget/Rates Public Hearing)
17
15
19
16
21
18
16

Meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. at the District’s meeting room located at:
7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Carmichael.

AGENDA ITEM 7

2019 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE
HOLIDAY

HOLIDAY DATE

DATE OBSERVED

New Year’s Day

Tuesday, January 1

Tuesday, January 1

Civil Rights Leaders Day

Monday, January 21

Monday, January 21

President’s Day

Monday, February 18

Monday, February 18

Memorial Day

Monday, May 27

Monday, May 27

Independence Day

Thursday, July 4

Thursday, July 4

Labor Day

Monday, September 2

Monday, September 2

Veterans Day

Monday, November 11

Monday, November 11

Thanksgiving Day

Thursday, November 28

Thursday, November 28

Day after Thanksgiving Day

Friday, November 29

Friday, November 29

Christmas Eve

Tuesday, December 24

Tuesday, December 24

Christmas Day

Wednesday, December 25

Wednesday, December 25

1 Floating Holiday

1 Day

1 day pre-approved
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

November 6, 2018
Members of the Board of Directors
Carmichael Water District
The Carmichael Water District (“District”) hereby submits the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is
accurate in all material aspects and is reported in a manner designed to fairly present the financial
positions and results of operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.
The CAFR includes the management discussion and analysis which should be ready in conjunction
with the transmittal letter. The District’s management discussion and analysis can be found
immediately following the independent auditor’s report.
This report includes all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities that are financially
accountable to the District’s Board of Directors. Financial accountability was determined on the
basis of budget adoption, imposition of will, funding, and appointment of the governing board.
Based upon these criteria, the Carmichael Water District Financing Corporation (the Financing
Corporation) is considered a component unit of the District.
District History and Service Description
The Carmichael Irrigation District held its first official meeting on February 8, 1916 and was the
first irrigation district established in Sacramento County under the Wright Irrigation Act of 1887.
The District changed its name to Carmichael Water District in the 1980s. The governance of the
District is through a five member elected Board of Directors with each director representing a
division of approximately equal population within the service area.
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The District services approximately eight square miles with a population of over 38,000. The
District maintains over 154 miles of water lines and supplies an average of 2,940 million gallons
of water annually to its customers. The District is substantially built out with anticipated growth
through in-fill development of larger parcels and a limited number of vacant parcels. The land use
is predominantly residential with commercial along major road corridors and public use lands
including parks, schools, and one golf course.
Mission Statement
“Committed to providing the highest quality water for the lowest feasible cost and to serving our
customers with diligence, efficiency, and integrity.”
Economic Condition and Outlook
As the District is primarily built out, it does not depend on new growth to maintain revenue. The
District continues the practice of establishing rates and funds that support the expected and
unexpected expense fluctuations encountered year to year. The District investigates opportunities
to increase the District’s financial position, whether it is outside District or Boundary water sales,
interties with neighboring agencies, or partnerships with public and private entities.
Significant Projects and Future Plans
Infrastructure and Delivery System
The District completed a comprehensive 100 year Master Plan in 2003 that provided a perspective
on the backlog of unfunded infrastructure replacement liabilities and a strategy for resolving the
long-term sustainability of the District. The updated 2015 Master Plan followed the same approach
looking ahead 50 years and included a 15 year detailed capital improvement strategy. The Plan
continues to guide the capital projects of the District.
The District continues to invest in repair and replacement of aging infrastructure throughout its
system on a pay-as-you-go financial strategy:
 Annual meter replacement - 1,100
 Service line replacement – 80
 Mainline Projects
 Water Treatment Plant Facility Improvements
 Water Supply and Facility Improvement Study
Water supply – Cooperative Efforts
Dry year and emergency water supply are critical to the District’s ability to meet customer water
demand. The District is continually partnering with others to ensure safe and reliable water supply
for its customers and increased revenue to ratepayers:
 Treatment and Delivery Agreement with neighboring water agency
 Intertie Project with neighboring water agency
 Mutual Assistance Agreements with four (4) neighboring water agencies
 Secured drought proof water for emergency supply
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Future Plans
During FY 2018-2019 the District will complete and engineering study of the LaVista Reservoir
and Well Site to determine the project scope, phasing approach and funding source. This project
was outlined in the District’s Master Plan as an important asset to the District’s portfolio for
existing and future water supply reliability.
Financial Information
Business Plan and Rate Setting
The District prepared a 10 Year Business Plan to define the financial position of the District. The
Business Plan is in place as a guidance document for financial planning and rate setting decision
making for the Board of Directors and staff. It also provides a foundation for the long-term
financial sustainability of the District. It is the driving document to budget and rates on an annual
basis. The Business Plan is updated during the five (5) year rate setting process to ensure
sustainable rates and revenue.
Budgetary Control
The District’s budget is a one year financial plan that follows closely with the District’s Master
Plan and Business Plan Efforts. The fiscal year budget is an annual plan detailing the revenue
requirements necessary to support the operation and maintenance expenses, capital improvements
(planned system maintenance), debt obligations, designations and reserves. The Board approves
the annual budget following an extensive budget process and public hearing.
The budget is reviewed monthly as part of the District’s regular financial reporting process.
Supplemental amendments to the budgets, transfers within budget categories, or transfers from
reserves are approved by the Board.
Reserve Policy
The purpose of the reserve policy is to establish funds to minimize adverse impacts from
anticipated and unanticipated District expenses, to mitigate and minimize risk, and provide a
mechanisms to help ensure funding for long-term capital improvement needs.
Debt Management
The District recognizes that borrowing long-term funds for the purpose of enhancing, improving,
or acquiring infrastructure and facilities may be necessary. To minimize dependency on debt
financing, the District strives to fund annual renewal and replacement capital projects (i.e.
vehicles; equipment; annual meter, service line, membrane, and mainline replacement programs)
from rates.
Internal Control
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to ensure its assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. Internal control composition is
designed to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and other
reporting.
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The internal control structure is designed to:
l. Provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance these objectives are met:
a. The cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
b. The evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
2. Ensure transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization; and
3. Ensure transactions are recorded properly.
Other Information
Independent Audit
California Government Code Section 26909 requires independent annual audits to be conducted
for special districts. Richardson & Company, LLP was selected to conduct the annual audit of
2018 District operations. The auditor’s report is included in the financial section of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Awards and Acknowledgments
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that this report will
meet the program requirements to receive the award. This is the Carmichael Water District’s first
submission of a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2018 Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA).
Preparation of the CAFR was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We
appreciate the dedication and professionalism that our staff members bring to Carmichael Water
District. Additionally, we would like to thank the District Board of Directors for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the District.
Respectfully submitted,

________________________________
Steve Nugent
General Manager and Board Secretary

________________________________
Lynette S. Moreno
Assistant Manager and Board Treasurer
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL DISTRICT OFFICIALS

Board of Directors – Elected Officials

Name

Title

Division

George “Roy” Leidy

President

Division 1

Mark R. Emmerson

Director

Division 2

John A. Wallace

Director

Division 3

Ron Greenwood

Vice-President

Division 4

Paul Selsky

Director

Division 5

Staff – Appointed Officials
Title

Name

General Manager and Secretary

Steve Nugent

Assistant General Manager and Treasurer

Lynette S. Moreno
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210
Sacramento, California 95825
Telephone: (916) 564-8727
FAX: (916) 564-8728

To the Board of Directors
Carmichael Water District
Carmichael, California
Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Carmichael Water District (the District), which
comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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To the Board of Directors
Carmichael Water District
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the District, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in financial position and cash flows
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Change in Accounting Principles
As discussed in Note N to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2018, the District adopted
new accounting guidance, GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Emphasis of Matters
As discussed in Note F to the financial statements, the District’s actuary did not consider it necessary to use
age adjusted health insurance premiums in the calculation of the District’s net other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) liability. Had the actuary included age adjusted health insurance premiums in the
calculation of the net OPEB liability, the OPEB liability may have been significantly larger in amount. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 13 to 25 and other required supplementary information on pages 61 to 64
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections listed in the
table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

November 6, 2018
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
The District’s Basic Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the finances of the Carmichael Water District fiscal year (FY) ending June 30, 2018.
Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis provides an introduction and a brief description of the District’s
financial statements, including the relationship of the statements to each other and the significant
differences in the information they provide. This District’s financial statements include five
components:






Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
Other Information

The statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the net difference reported as net position. Net
position may be displayed in three categories:




Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

The statement of net position provides the basis of computing rate of return, evaluating the capital
structure of the District, and assessing its liquidity and financial flexibility.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information which
shows how the District’s net position changed during the year. The financial statements, except
for the cash flow statement, are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which means that
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred regardless of the
timing of cash receipts or payments. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and determines
whether the District has recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.
The statement of cash flows provides information regarding the District’s cash receipts and cash
disbursements during the year. This statement reports cash activity in four categories:





Operating
Noncapital financing
Capital and related financing
Investing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Carmichael Water District operates as a public utility and maintains its accounting records in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for proprietary funds as prescribed by
the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The required financial statements include
the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and
Statement of Cash Flows.
Required Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District using accounting
methods similar to those used by companies in the private sector. These statements offer short and
long-term financial information about its activities.
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities,
and deferred inflows, which provide information about the nature and amounts of investments in
assets and obligations to District creditors. They also provide the basis for computing rates of
return, evaluating the capital structure of the District, and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the District.
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the District’s operations over the
past year and can be used to determine the extent to which the District has successfully recovered
its costs through its rates, fees, facility capacity charges, and other charges. The District’s credit
worthiness can also be determined from these statements.
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the District’s cash receipts and payments during the
reporting period, as well as net changes in cash resulting from operations, non-capital, capital and
related financing, and investing activities, while excluding such non-cash accounting measures as
depreciation or amortization of assets. This statement explains where cash came from, where cash
was used, and the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.
Notes to Financial Statements
The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements are an integral part of, and can be found immediately following, the financial
statements.
Other Information
In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, the Basic Financial Statements
also present certain required supplementary information, which follows the notes to the financial
statements. This other information includes retirement and OPEB funding schedules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DISTRICT UPDATES
Outside Boundary Sales
Carmichael Water District (District) worked with Golden State Water
Company (GSWC) and Aerojet Rocketdyne (AR) on a cooperative
pipeline project - American River Pipeline Project (Project) that was
completed in 2016. This project provides delivery of up to 5,000 Acrefeet per year (AFY) of treated water from the District’s Bajamont Water
Treatment Plant (BWTP) to GSWC for use as a replacement water supply.
The District could also use the pipeline in the case of a severe emergency and deliver water from
GSWC to CWD. The District began to deliver treated water at full capacity to GSWC on January
1, 2017. The project was funded by AR in addition to a portion of the funding secured by a grant
through the Regional Water Authority.
Two agreements were signed on August 15, 2016. In the agreement with AR, the District sold,
transferred, and conveyed to GSWC the firm capacity right in the BWTP to divert, treat, and
deliver up to 5,000 AFY of treated water to GSWC as a replacement water supply. Additionally,
the District secured approximately 2,000 AFY of remediated groundwater supply from AR’s
groundwater extraction and treatment (GET) facilities GET LA and GET LB, which will assist
with drought proofing the District during future surface water supply curtailments. The sale of
capacity resulted in the District recognizing $9,400,000 in operating revenue in 2017. The
payment dates for the capacity sale are detailed in the agreements with the final payment to be
received by the District on July 1, 2022. However, there is no penalty for early pay-off by AR.
As of June 30, 2018, the District has a capacity sale receivable of $5,600,000.
In addition to the sale of capacity, the District also recognized revenue from the treatment and
delivery of water to GSWC. The agreement with GSWC outlined an allocated portion of the
District’s fixed and variable costs relating to the production of treated water, capital costs
associated with the BWTP and intake structures, and membrane replacement costs charged to
GSWC during the year. While the agreement calls for treatment and delivery of up to 5,000 AFY
of treated water, the District provided delivery totaling 5,043 AF of which 43 AF was District GET
water. As of June 30, 2018, the District recognized operating revenue of $817,991 for the
treatment and delivery of water to GSWC for its first full year of delivery.
Rate Increase
The five year rate structure for the District is detailed in the ‘2015 Master Plan, Business Plan
and Water Rate Study’. In 2016, The Reed Group updated the ‘Business Plan and Water Rate
Study’ portion which served as the basis for the District eliminating the use of a tiered rate
structure. The District implemented 5% rate increases beginning January 1, 2017 and 2018.
Although water consumption increased in 2018 compared to 2017, the District’s customers are
still using less water than they did prior to the drought. The increase in rates is a necessary
measure to combat the continued overall decline in water consumption and helps ensure the longterm financial success of the District.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT


The District’s total net position increased $83,278 to end at $51,058,497 at June 30, 2018 and
increased $9,513,699 to end at $50,975,219 at June 30, 2017. Although the 2018 change in
net position was $1,443,369, this increase was mostly offset by a $1,360,091 reduction in net
position as a result of implementing a new accounting standard related to the recording of the
net other postemployment benefits liability. The significant increase in 2017 was due mainly
to the recording of the capacity sale revenue. Continuing outside boundary sales, the annual
rate increase, staff’s cost control, and strategic planning efforts served to position the District’s
financial health in a stable, strong position.



Total revenue for the District decreased $8,770,389 in 2018 following an increase of
$10,184,749 in 2017 due to the capacity sale recording. A portion of the decrease was offset
by the increase in outside boundary sales and an increase in retail water sales. The decrease in
non-operating revenue is due to lower miscellaneous revenue such as recycling, investment in
electrical power, investment income earned, gain on disposal of assets, and expense
reimbursements.



Total expenses decreased in 2018 by $700,059. Operating expenses, not including
depreciation, increased $97,855. In comparison to the prior year, the increases in 2018
operating expenses were largely offset by the environmental restoration costs for the clean-up
and disposal of the abandoned pipeline and other old water assets along the American River in
2017. Non-operating expenses decreased $759,674 due in majority to a pass-through grant
payment from 2017.



Total cash and investments increased by $2,590,919 in 2018. Operating cash posted the largest
gain with an increase of $2,504,891, which can be attributed to a payment received on the
capacity sale receivable. Restricted facility fees cash had a slight increase due to construction
projects requiring connections to the District’s distribution infrastructure.



The District’s plan for reinvestment in infrastructure and replacement of aging assets continued
with overall investment in Capital Assets of $657,398 and Construction in Progress of
$1,233,924.



Long-term debt, including current portion, decreased by $1,333,175 due to the annual principal
payment on the 2010 Certificates of Participation and bond premium amortization.

Net Position
A summary of the District's Net Position as of June 30, 2018 is presented in Table A-1, reflecting
the underlying assets and liabilities impacting this year’s increase in net position. The financial
condition of the District improved slightly over last year with an increase of $83,278, from
$50,975,219 in 2017 to $51,975,219 in 2018. Current and other assets increased by $476,257 over
last year with 2017 having a significant increase over 2016 due to the construction for the
American River Pipeline Project and the resulting agreements between the District, GSWC and
AR took effect.

16

As a result of GASB Pronouncement 68 that was first implemented in FY 2015, deferred outflows
and inflows of resources relating to pensions must be reported every year. In addition GASB 75
required reporting of the OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows. Due to the
current year OPEB and pension calculations, deferred outflows increased $677,721 which also
helped to increase total net position.
While this activity in total assets and deferred outflows caused net position to increase, total
liabilities also increased by $805,181, which had an impact on the total increase in net position.
The majority of the liabilities increase occurred in noncurrent liabilities related to the OPEB
liability.
TABLE A-1
Net Position
2018
Assets:
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total Assets

$

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred amount on refunding
Other post employment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions
Total Deferred outflows
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long-term debt
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pensions
Total Deferred Inflow
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

20,271,681
56,080,177
76,351,858

2017
$

19,460,823
56,556,434
76,017,257

2016
$

12,904,935
56,879,706
69,784,641

708,428
562,291
1,175,018
2,445,737

774,073
993,943
1,768,016

839,720
339,079
1,178,799

2,098,786
5,668,045
19,659,732
27,426,563

2,008,354
3,560,121
21,052,907
26,621,382

3,947,317
3,022,388
22,386,082
29,355,787

312,535
312,535

188,672
188,672

146,133
146,133

35,823,870
2,427,721
12,806,906
51,058,497

35,032,600
2,402,358
13,540,261
50,975,219

34,148,344
2,360,084
4,953,092
41,461,520

$

$

Changes in Net Position
Table A-2 below reflects the underlying revenue and expense sources of the increase in net
position, notably, a large revenue decrease. The majority of the revenue decrease can be attributed
to the recording of $9,400,000 in capacity sale revenue in 2017. An improvement in water sales
revenue over 2016 is due to the rate increases that became effective January 1, 2017 and 2018.
Rebounding water consumption by the District’s customers coupled with the 5% increases in water
rates served to provide an increase in water sales. The decrease in capital revenue is due to the
contributed capital associated with the American River Pipeline Project in 2017.
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Total expenses reflects a decrease over last year with a large decrease in non-operating expenses.
While operating departmental expenses increased slightly over last year, all departments stayed
under the Board adopted budget for the current year (See Table A-4). Operating expenses
increased due to an increase in other costs such as compensated absences expense and pension
expense adjustment. These increases in operating expenses were slightly offset by a reduced
depreciation expense of $38,240 for aging capital assets. The majority of the decrease in nonoperating expenses is due to a pass-through grant payment to AR of $723,187 in 2017. The decline
in interest expense of $51,000 from the payments of the 2010 COP bonds helped to decrease total
non-operating expenses.
TABLE A-2
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues
Non-operating revenues
Capital revenues
Total Revenues

2018
$ 11,731,531
83,299
39,229
11,854,059

2017
$ 19,732,042
43,825
848,581
20,624,448

2016
$ 9,493,342
127,610
818,748
10,439,700

Depreciation
Operating expenses
Non-operating expenses
Total Expenses

2,337,538
7,142,075
931,077
10,410,690

2,375,778
7,044,220
1,690,751
11,110,749

2,492,258
5,747,347
1,017,921
9,257,526

1,443,369
50,975,219
(1,360,091)
$ 51,058,497

9,513,699
41,461,520

1,182,174
40,279,346

$ 50,975,219

$ 41,461,520

Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year
Restatement
Net Position at End of Year
Revenues

Table A-3 breaks down the operating revenues of the District. The District’s operating revenue
decreased by $8,000,511, for a total of $11,731,531 as compared to 2017 operating revenue of
$19,732,042. The 2017 capacity sale and associated recorded revenue led to the majority of the
decrease in operating revenue. Rebounding water consumption and the 5% rate increases
implemented January 1, 2017 and 2018 attributed to an increase in water sales of $996,519. The
table below illustrates the District’s commitment to prudent water sales revenue and water rates to
ensure the Business Plan effort is followed for maintaining a strong financial position for future
planning.
TABLE A-3
Operating revenues
Water sales
Connections and other fees
Capacity sales
Water treatment & delivery
Subtotal

2018
$ 10,859,913
53,627
817,991
11,731,531

2017
$ 9,863,394
54,928
9,400,000
413,720
19,732,042

2016
$ 9,319,543
51,174
9,370,717

Wholesale water sales, net
Total operating revenue

$ 11,731,531

$ 19,732,042

122,625
$ 9,493,342
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Expenses
Total operating expenses for the year are shown below in Table A-4. Financial Services
department was combined with Administrative Services in 2018. Although operating expenses
increased by $97,855, all individual departments were able to stay under budget by the continuing
efforts of staff to control and monitor costs while still providing valuable services to customers.
Total other costs and expenses consisting of compensated absences expense, pension expense
adjustment, other post-employment benefits, and membrane expense increased $474,794. These
other costs, with the exception of membrane expense, are not budgeted and are the result of
required accrual adjustments.
TABLE A-4
Operating expenses
General and administrative
Financial services
Transmission and distribution
Pumping and treatment
Pipeline demo and enviro restoration
Other costs and expenses
Total operating expenses*

$

$

2018
2,493,848
1,649,564
2,142,881
855,782
7,142,075

$

$

2017
2,047,067
577,342
1,388,069
2,024,279
626,475
380,988
7,044,220

$

$

2016
1,832,275
678,601
1,179,274
1,951,861
105,336
5,747,347

*Excludes depreciation expense
Long – Term Debt
Table A-5 provides the details of the District’s long-term debt and related unamortized premium.
Total long-term debt decreased this year by $1,333,175. The decrease of $1,245,000 was the
annual principal installment payment on the 2010 Certificates of Participation (COP). The
remainder of the decrease of $88,175 is the amortization of the premium received on the sale of
the 2010 COP’s. The District did not enter into any new long-term debt this year. See Note E of
the audited financial statements for additional information on long-term debt.
TABLE A-5
Long – Term Debt
2010 Certificates of Participation*
Total

2018
$ 19,925,000
19,925,000

2017
$ 21,170,000
21,170,000

2016
$ 22,355,000
22,355,000

Unamortized Premium
Total Long-Term Debt*

1,039,732
$ 20,964,732

1,127,907
$ 22,297,907

1,216,082
$ 23,571,082

*Includes current portion
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Debt Service Coverage Ratio
The debt service coverage ratio is a measurement required by the 2010 COP bond indenture
covenants. The ratio demonstrates the District’s ability to meet its debt obligations. Table A-6
provides the year-to-year comparison of the debt service coverage ratio. The 2010 COP bond
covenants require a minimum 1.20 coverage ratio. This fiscal year, the District again complied
with the covenants arriving at a comfortable 2.14 ratio.
TABLE A-6
Debt Service Coverage Ratio
2018

2017

2016

$ 10,859,913
954,917
11,814,830

$ 9,863,394
9,914,157
19,777,551

$ 9,319,543
294,235
9,613,778

2,493,848
1,649,564
2,142,881
855,782
7,142,075

2,047,067
1,388,069
2,024,279
577,342
626,475
380,988
7,044,220

1,832,275
1,179,274
1,951,861
678,601
105,336
5,747,347

NET REVENUES

$ 4,672,755

$ 12,733,331

$ 3,866,431

DEBT SERVICE
Certificates of Participation
Debt service coverage ratio

$ 2,183,575
2.14x

$ 2,184,325
5.83x

$ 2,196,200
1.76x

REVENUES
Water sales
Other revenue
Total revenues
O&M EXPENSES
General and administrative services
Transmission and distribution
Pumping and treatment
Financial services
Pipeline demo and environmental restoration
Other costs and expenses
Total operating expenses*

*Excludes depreciation expense
Capital Assets
The District continued its strategic plan to allocate resources to replace aging assets and invest in
infrastructure. Table A-7 is a listing of the District’s capital assets. This year, the District invested
$657,398 in capital assets: $465,827 was invested in distribution infrastructure and meters,
$97,220 in pumping plant, and $94,351 in other assets. In addition, $1,233,924 was invested in
construction in progress. As of the end of the year, construction in progress consisted of a mainline
replacement project and collector restoration project. See Note C of the audited financial
statements for a summary of the Capital Asset activity.
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TABLE A-7
Capital Assets
2018
Capital Assets not being depreciated:
Land, franchises and water rights
Construction-in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Pumping and treatment
Distribution infrastructure
Transportation/licensed mobile equipment
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Information technology
Furniture and fixtures
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated
Net Capital Assets

$

553,227
208,120
761,347

2017
$

546,488
359,519
906,007

2016
$

546,488
222,816
769,304

35,052,691
62,467,340
1,147,828
10,226,508
238,321
1,890,953
102,620
111,126,261
(55,807,431)
55,318,830

36,051,773
64,542,110
1,126,536
10,026,892
213,793
1,784,493
102,620
113,848,217
(58,197,790)
55,650,427

35,760,322
63,690,346
1,111,629
9,562,356
125,072
1,762,648
102,620
112,114,993
(56,004,591)
56,110,402

$ 56,080,177

$ 56,556,434

$ 56,879,706

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District’s cash position at June 30, 2018 is $12,151,548, representing all cash held by the
District and/or by trustee to serve the financial needs of the District. Table A-8 is a detailed
listing of the components of the cash position. See Note B for additional information.
Cash
Operating cash is the working capital used by the District to conduct its day-to-day operations.
Expenditures flowing from this account are Board approved through the annual budget process.
All revenue sources, except for the collection of facility fees, as discussed below, are deposited to
this account. Operating cash increased this year due to the increase in revenue from collecting on
the capacity sale receivable. There were no new debt issuances this year. Cash on hand is the
imprest cash held for petty cash disbursements and the cash register change drawer.
Board – Designated Cash
The key to long-term financial stability is the ability to anticipate and prepare for significant
financial obligations. To achieve this, the District believes that a portion of its cash should be held
in reserve. Board-designated accounts are for specific purposes and are established by the Board
of Directors per Reserve Policy. Portions of these funds have been funded during the annual
budget process. The adequacy of the target reserves and/or annual contributions are reviewed
annually during the budgeting and rate setting process and may be revised as necessary. A portion
of the membrane fund was used to help pay for a planned systematic change out of membranes for
this fiscal year. The use of the reserves for the membrane replacement is Board authorized for
such occasions and is the reason for accumulating and designating an annual membrane funding
amount each year.
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Restricted Cash
The District’s restricted cash are those accounts held by trustee and or held by the District that are
constrained through external requirements as to their usage. The debt service account is held by
the 2010 COP bond trustee and represents the debt service reserve required by debt covenants
restricting its usage to debt service payments. This year, the debt service funds have decreased
due to lower investment returns on a portion of the funds in certificates of deposits with varying
maturity dates and interest rates. The facility fees cash holds the collections of developer fees
charged by the District for connections to the District’s distribution infrastructure. These fees are
restricted to capital expenses by law.
Table A-8
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2018
Cash
Operating cash
Cash on hand
Subtotal, cash

$

7,299,322
2,000
7,301,322

2017
$

4,794,431
2,000
4,796,431

2016
$

3,333,739
2,000
3,335,739

Board - designated cash
Membrane replacement fund
Operating reserve fund
Rate stabilization fund
Subtotal, Board designated cash

580,835
1,327,321
514,349
2,422,505

541,679
1,311,819
508,342
2,361,840

355,845
1,304,094
504,290
2,164,229

Total cash and cash equivalents

9,723,827

7,158,271

5,499,968

Restricted cash
Debt service funds, 2010 COP
Facility fees
Subtotal, Restricted cash

2,210,254
217,467
2,427,721

2,212,393
189,965
2,402,358

2,259,257
101,297
2,360,554

Total cash and investments

$ 12,151,548

$

9,560,629

$

7,860,522

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Funding
As recommended in the 2015 Business Plan, the Board approved establishment and annual funding
of OPEB into the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) starting in FY 2017. This
is the second year of funding the OPEB through the trust at an annual rate of $440,000. In addition,
the District is paying the annual retiree medical premiums through the annual budget which
reduces the District’s OPEB liability. The plan is to continue to maintain the annual OPEB funding
and premium payments at the current level and reassess the fund value, liability and funding level
on an ongoing basis with each actuarial assessment and report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OTHER NOTES
Economic Factors
The District’s Board of Directors and management staff consider many factors when setting the
fiscal year budget. Management staff continually monitored all expenses to ensure that overall
expenses stay within budget. Closely monitoring these expenses resulted in the total approved
O&M budget for the District coming in under budget by $1,414,627. Although water consumption
increased in FY 2017-2018 compared to FY 2016-2017, consumption is still much lower than in
years prior to the drought.
Conservation
On May 5, 2015 the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted an emergency
regulation requiring an immediate 25 percent reduction in overall potable urban water use
statewide in response to statewide drought conditions with a specific 36% reduction goal
established for Carmichael Water District. On April 7, 2017 Governor Brown lifted the emergency
regulation. The District has since been operating under normal water conservation conditions.
Water conservation continues to be a focus of the SWRCB with recently enacted legislation
focused on long term water use reductions. The District has continued to monitor and provide
input on the new regulations that will have future financial impacts.
Long-Term Infrastructure Liability and Planning
The District has been proactive in infrastructure replacement efforts by replacing aging pipelines
and failing water service lines while also completing an accelerated meter retrofit program. Recent
water use reductions are in part a benefit of metering, which has resulted in a greater awareness of
water use by District customers, effective customer response to changing water use practices, and
regional and District-led implementation of water conservation demand management measures.
Although reduced water use is an important part of a modern and responsibly managed utility, it
also can present challenges in managing the cost of service and maintaining sufficient revenue.
The ‘2015 Master Plan, Business Plan and Water Rate Study’ provided the analysis, findings,
and recommendations for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the District and its assets.
The ‘2016 Business Plan and Water Rate Study’, which was updated by The Reed Group, also
identified recommended investments and scheduled implementation for a ten year planning
window.
The District assets and facilities range in age and condition and include buried pipelines for
transmission and distribution of treated water, above ground water supply treatment and pumping
plants, groundwater wells, buildings, and storage. Planned maintenance, rehabilitation and
replacement of these assets are essential to the long-term sustainability of District operation and
are the largest District liability. Management staff must monitor and adjust infrastructure
replacement annually based on District needs.
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Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the
financial resources it manages. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the District at 7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Carmichael, California, 95608, call
(916) 483-2452, or visit our website at www.carmichaelwd.org.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2018 and 2017
2018

2017

$ 9,723,827

$ 7,158,271

Total Current Assets

1,709,361
70,865
38,062
1,491
19,813
426,576
102,369
12,092,364

1,666,504
219,093
51,812
2,669
14,244
637,537
153,908
9,904,038

Total Restricted Assets

2,427,721
2,427,721

2,402,358
2,402,358

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

761,347
55,318,830
56,080,177

906,007
55,650,427
56,556,434

Other Assets:
Noncurrent capacity sale receivable
Investment in electrical power
Total Other Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

5,600,000
151,596
5,751,596
64,259,494

7,000,000
154,427
7,154,427
66,113,219

TOTAL ASSETS

76,351,858

76,017,257

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Pensions

708,428
562,291
1,175,018

774,073

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

2,445,737

1,768,016

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Current services
Outside boundary
Grants
Other
Accrued interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

993,943

Continued
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2018 and 2017
2018

2017

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Retention payable
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

$ 328,590
92,182
186,541
151,242
33,817
1,306,414
2,098,786

$ 366,767
117,356
103,673
161,617
12,527
1,246,414
2,008,354

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Certificates of participation, net of current portion
Compensated absences
Unearned lease revenue
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

19,659,732
137,001
123,502
2,514,648
2,892,894
25,327,777

21,052,907
126,101
124,916
2,034,074
1,275,030
24,613,028

TOTAL LIABILITIES

27,426,563

26,621,382

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions

312,535

188,672

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

312,535

188,672

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital facilities
Unrestricted

35,823,870
2,210,255
217,466
12,806,906

35,032,600
2,212,393
189,965
13,540,261

$ 51,058,497

$ 50,975,219

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Retail water sales
Connection and other fees
Total retail water sales

$ 10,859,913
53,627
10,913,540

Capacity sales
Water treatment and delivery charges
Total outside boundary sales
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Transmission and distribution
Pumping and treatment
Depreciation and amortization
Pipeline demo and environmental restoration
Compensated absences expense
Pension expense adjustment
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
Membrane expense
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Other revenue
Interest from investment in electrical power
Investment income earned
Reimbursements
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Pass-through grant payment
Interest expense
TOTAL NON-OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Facility fees and other capital revenues
Grant revenue
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatement for change in accounting principle -Note N
Net position, beginning of year, as restated
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
$

9,863,394
54,928
9,918,322

817,991
817,991

9,400,000
413,720
9,813,720

11,731,531

19,732,042

2,493,848
1,649,564
2,142,881
2,337,538
10,899
423,362
257,773
163,748
9,479,613

2,624,409
1,388,069
2,024,279
2,375,778
626,475
1,031
148,996
216,795
14,166
9,419,998

2,251,918

10,312,044

21,857
14,161
33,558
13,723
(25,406)

15,284
11,116
12,047
5,378
(643)
(723,187)
(966,921)
(1,646,926)

(905,671)
(847,778)
39,229
39,229

846,898
1,683
848,581

1,443,369

9,513,699

50,975,219
(1,360,091)
49,615,128

41,461,520

$ 51,058,497

$ 50,975,219

41,461,520

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
2018

2017

$ 13,367,686
(4,962,702)
(1,828,012)
6,576,972

$ 12,505,677
(5,473,822)
(1,969,942)
5,061,913

(1,886,197)
11,374
(1,245,000)
(938,576)
27,365

(1,311,990)
19,979
(1,185,000)
(999,324)
85,760
724,871
(723,188)

(4,031,034)

(3,388,892)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Receipts from investment in electrical power
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

27,989
16,992
44,981

9,518
17,568
27,086

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2,590,919

1,700,107

9,560,629

7,860,522

$ 12,151,548

$ 9,560,629

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Facility fees collected
Capital grants received
Capital grants paid
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Continued
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Cash and cash equivalents - financial statement
classification
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018

2017

$ 9,723,827
2,427,721

$ 7,158,271
2,402,358

$ 12,151,548

$ 9,560,629

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expense
Noncurrent capacity sale receivable
Deferred outflows
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Retention payable
Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation
Net pension obligation
Deferred inflows
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2,251,918

$ 10,312,044

2,337,538

2,375,778

106,549
13,750
210,961
51,539
1,400,000
(743,366)
(38,177)
(25,174)
82,868
21,290
10,900
257,773
480,574
123,863

1,766,303
(318,711)
(30,484)
(7,000,000)
(654,864)
(1,834,673)
35,818
8,049
(198,282)
1,031
(223,205)
761,321
42,539

$ 6,542,806

$ 5,042,664

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Amortization of deferred amortization on refunding
$
65,645
Receipt of contributed assets
11,864
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

65,647
761,138

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018 and 2017
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the Carmichael Water District (District) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are
described below.
Reporting Entity: The District was established in 1916 as an irrigation district located in the central portion
of Sacramento County northeast of the City of Sacramento and north of the lower American River. The
area served by the District encompasses approximately eight square miles and serves a population of
approximately 37,897. The District is predominately residential in character, with interspersed commercial
areas. The District is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of five directors elected by residents of
the District. The accompanying basic financial statements present the District and its component unit. The
component unit discussed below is included in the District’s reporting entity because of the significance of
its operational and financial relationship with the District.
The District has created the Carmichael Water District Financing Corporation (the Corporation) to provide
assistance to the District in the issuance of debt. Although legally separate from the District, the
Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary government because it shares a common Board of
Directors with the District and its sole purpose is to provide financing to the District under the debt issuance
documents of the District. Debt issued by the Corporation is reflected as debt of the District in these
financial statements. The Corporation has no other transactions and does not issue separate financial
statements.
Basis of Presentation – Fund Accounting: The District’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in
these basic financial statements as an enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group. The enterprise
fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other policies. Net position for the enterprise fund represents the
amount available for future operations.
Basis of Accounting: The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by
its measurement focus. The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Net position is segregated into amounts invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, amounts restricted and amounts unrestricted. Enterprise fund type operating
statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total position.
The District uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Grant revenue is recognized when program
expenditures are incurred in accordance with program guidelines. When such funds are received they are
recorded as unearned revenues until earned. Earned but unbilled water services are accrued as revenue.
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Water lines are constructed by private developers and then dedicated to the District, which is then
responsible for their future maintenance. These lines are recorded as capital contributions when they pass
inspection by the District and the estimated costs are capitalized as transmission and distribution.
Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing
principal operations of the District. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating revenues and expense consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and
investing types of activities and result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
When both unrestricted and restricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports
separate sections for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources
represent a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting
period. These amounts will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) or an inflow of resources
(revenue) until the earning process is complete. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources represent
amounts deferred related to the District’s pension and OPEB plan as described in Notes H and I, and for
deferred amounts related to bond refundings.
Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from
the Plans fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents held include bank deposits and restricted and unrestricted investments in money market
mutual funds and LAIF.
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(Continued)
Restricted Assets: Certain proceeds of the District’s long-term debt are classified as restricted investments
on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants. The “reserve” account is
used to report resources set aside to make up for potential future deficiencies in the Certificates of
Participation debt service. The District also had unspent facility fees classified as restricted cash and cash
equivalents.
Inventory: Inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of the water
distribution facilities and is valued at average cost.
Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the
acquisition value, which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential
in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date. Self-constructed assets are recorded based on the
amount of direct labor and materials charged to the asset construction. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Description

Estimated Life

Pumping and treatment
Distribution infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Construction projects
Transportation equipment
Information technology
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

10-50 years
10-75 years
10-40 years
10-75 years
7-20 years
3-7 years
5-7 years
5-10 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. It is the District’s policy to capitalize
all capital assets with a cost of $1,500 to $10,000 or more, depending on the asset type. Costs of assets sold
or retired (and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation) are eliminated from the balance sheet in
the year of sale or retirement, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.
Depreciation expense aggregated $2,337,538 and $2,375,778 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and is included with depreciation and amortization expense.
Bond Premiums and Bond Issuance Costs: Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the lives of
the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums. Bond issuance costs are
recognized as an expense in the period incurred.
Deferred Amount from Refunding Debt: The difference between the reacquisition price of refunded debt
and the net carrying amount of the previously outstanding debt is deferred and reported as either a deferred
outflow or deferred inflow on the balance sheet. These amounts are amortized over the shorter of the term
of the old debt or the new debt.
Compensated Absences: The District’s policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
which will be paid to employees upon separation from the District’s service. The cost of vacation is
recognized in the period earned.
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Reclassifications: Certain amounts in 2016 have been reclassified to conform to the 2017 financial
statement presentation. The reclassification had no effect on total net assets or change in net assets.
New Pronouncements: In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (ARO’s), which is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible
capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related
to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The timing
and pattern of recognition of the liability and corresponding deferred outflow of resources recorded is
defined in this Statement. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes
criteria for identifying and disclosing fiduciary activities of state and local governments. The focus of the
criteria is on whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and the beneficiaries
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary
fund in the basic financial statements of the government. Four fiduciary funds should be reported under
this statement: Pension and other employee benefit trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose
trust funds, and custodial funds. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This Statement addresses practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB statements,
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurements and application,
pensions and other postemployment benefits. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2017.
In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. This Statement is
to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources – resources other than proceeds of refunding debt – are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole
purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.
This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017.
In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement improves the information that is disclosed in the notes
to government financial statements and clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires that additional essential information related
to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as
collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with
finance-related consequences and significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to the financial
statement there is a requirement that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings
and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for the reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
The District is currently analyzing the impact of the required implementation of these new statements.
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Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$ 9,723,827

2017

$

2,427,721

Total cash and investments

$ 12,151,548

7,158,271
2,402,358

$

9,560,629

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consisted of the following:
2018

Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions

$
Total cash

2,000
8,097,624
8,099,624

Certificates of deposit
Money market mutual funds
Investments in Local Agency Investment Fund
Total investments

2,178,618
31,636
1,841,670
4,051,924

Total cash and investments

$ 12,151,548

2017

$

2,000
5,526,075
5,528,075

2,208,707
3,686
1,820,161
4,032,554
$

9,560,629

The components of unrestricted cash and equivalents at June 30 are as follows:
2018

Operating cash
Designations (See Note G for designations)
Total unrestricted cash and investments

2017

$ 2,869,306
6,854,521

$

2,915,094
4,243,177

$ 9,723,827

$

7,158,271

Investment policy: California statutes authorize districts to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of credit
instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 - Financial
Affairs. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds
held by the bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy.
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During the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District’s permissible investments included the
following instruments:

Authorized
Investment Type
Local Agency Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations
State Obligations
California Local Agency Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium Term Corporate Notes
Mutual Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
LAIF
Collateralized Bank Deposits
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities
California Local Agency Investment Fund
County Pooled Investments
Time Deposits

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio*

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
180 days
270 days
5 years
1 year
92 days
5 years
N/A
N/A
N/A
5 years
5 years
N/A
N/A
5 years

None
None
None
None
None
40%
25%
30%
None
20%
30%
20%
20%
$4 million
None
20%
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
30%
10%
None
None
None
None
None
10%
None
None
None
None
None
None

*Excluding amounts held by the bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code
restrictions.
The District’s policy restricts the District from investing more than $4,000,000 in LAIF. In addition, staff
is directed to maintain an average annual balance not to exceed $3,500,000. The District complied with the
provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive)
pertaining to the types of investments held, the institutions in which deposits were made and the security
requirements. The District will continue to monitor compliance with applicable statutes pertaining to public
deposits and investments.
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements: Investment of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are
governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California
Government Code or the District’s investment policy. The 2010 Revenue Certificates of Participation debt
agreement contains certain provisions that address interest rate risk and credit risk, but not concentration of
credit risk.
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Authorized
Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

None
None
None
1 year
None
None
None
None
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Local Agency Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Certificates of Deposits
Investment Agreements
Repurchase Agreements
Money Market Mutual Funds
LAIF

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing
cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly
over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments held
by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the District’s investments by maturity:

Total
Held by bond trustee:
Certificates of Deposit
Money market mutual funds
LAIF

$ 2,178,618
31,636
1,841,670
Total $ 4,051,924

Remaining Maturity
(in Months)
12 Months
13-24
or Less
Months
$

732,469
31,636
1,841,670

$ 1,446,149

$ 2,605,775

$ 1,446,149

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the
California Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as
of year-end for each investment type.
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Total
Held by bond trustee:
Certificates of deposit
$ 2,178,618
Money market mutual funds
31,636
LAIF
1,841,670

Minimum
Ratings as of
Legal
Exempt from Year End
Rating
Disclosure
AAA
Not Rated
$ 2,178,618
AAA
N/A

$ 4,051,924

$ 31,636
$ 1,841,670
$ 2,178,618

$ 31,636

$ 1,841,670

Concentration of Credit Risk: The investment policy of the District limits the amount that can be invested
in any one issuer to the lesser of the amount stipulated by the California Government Code or 50% of total
investments, with the exception of U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. Agency Securities and LAIF. There are
no investments in any one issuer (other than mutual funds and external investment pools) that represent 5%
or more of total District investments.
Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions
to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
secured public deposits.
At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits were $8,097,624 and the balances in
financial institutions were $8,017,691 and of this amount $7,767,691 was not insured by federal depository
insurance. At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits were $5,526,075 and the
balances in financial institutions were $5,482,329 and of this amount $5,232,329 was not insured by federal
depository insurance. As of June 30, 2018, District investments in the following investment types were
held by the same broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the District to buy the securities:

Reported Investment Type
Certificates of deposit
Money market mutual funds
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Investment in LAIF: LAIF is stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The LAIF is a special
fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments. The total
fair value amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF is $88,798,232,977 managed by the State
Treasurer. Of that amount, 2.67% is invested in structured notes and asset-backed securities. No amounts
were invested in derivative financial products. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight
responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute. The fair value
of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts
based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Fair Value Measurement: The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
The District has certificates of deposit of $2,178,618 at June 30, 2018. The fair values of certificates of
deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being
offered on the certificates to a schedule of aggregated contractual maturities on such time deposits, which
are level 2 inputs. The District’s investment in the money market mutual fund is considered Level 2 because
the value is calculated using amortized cost of the securities held in the fund, not the market value.
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2017
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land, franchises and water rights $
Construction in progress
Capital assets being depreciated:
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
Buildings and improvements
Transportation equipment
Information technology
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Less accumulated depreciation:
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
Buildings and improvements
Transportation equipment
Information technology
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Net capital assets being depreciated
Net capital assets

546,488
359,519
906,007

Additions

$

Deletions

6,739
1,233,924
1,240,663
97,220
465,827
10,489
21,292
16,735
45,835

$ (1,096,302)
(3,647,068)

657,398

(4,764,677)

(18,090,623)
(32,885,540)
(4,324,360)
(934,015)
(1,738,166)
(122,466)
(102,620)
(58,197,790)
55,650,427

(694,841)
(1,318,326)
(258,429)
(26,034)
(21,526)
(18,382)

1,096,303
3,610,287

(2,337,538)
(1,680,140)

4,727,897
(36,780)

$
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Balance
June 30, 2018

$
$ (1,385,323)
(1,385,323)

36,051,773
64,542,110
10,026,892
1,126,536
1,784,493
213,793
102,620
113,848,217

$ 56,556,434

Transfers

(439,477) $

1,385,323

35,052,691
62,467,340
10,226,508
1,147,828
1,890,953
238,321
102,620
111,126,261

1,385,323

(17,689,161)
(30,593,579)
(4,582,789)
(960,049)
(1,759,692)
(119,541)
(102,620)
(55,807,431)
55,318,830

1,106,471
189,127
89,725

(21,307)

21,307

(36,780) $

553,227
208,120
761,347

-

$ 56,080,177
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Balance
July 1, 2016
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land, franchises and water rights $
Construction in progress
Capital assets being depreciated:
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
Buildings and improvements
Transportation equipment
Information technology
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Less accumulated depreciation:
Pumping plant
Transmission and distribution
Buildings and improvements
Transportation equipment
Information technology
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Net capital assets being depreciated
Net capital assets

546,488
222,816
769,304

Additions

Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2017

$
$ 1,087,850
1,087,850

35,760,322
63,690,346
9,562,356
1,111,629
1,762,648
125,072
102,620
112,114,993

264,236
286,627
412,570

(17,390,776)
(31,617,576)
(4,078,067)
(989,134)
(1,717,633)
(108,785)
(102,620)
(56,004,591)
56,110,402

(699,847)
(1,372,769)
(246,293)
(22,655)
(20,533)
(13,681)

$ 56,879,706

Deletions

$ (951,147)
(951,147)

$ (125,427)
(77,774)

27,215
690,564
51,966
92,681

951,147

36,051,773
64,542,110
10,026,892
1,126,536
1,784,493
213,793
102,620
113,848,217

951,147

(18,090,623)
(32,885,540)
(4,324,360)
(934,015)
(1,738,166)
(122,466)
(102,620)
(58,197,790)
55,650,427

21,845
88,721
985,278

(2,375,778)
(1,390,500)
$

(302,650)

(203,201)

104,805
77,774

182,579
(20,622)
$ (20,622) $

546,488
359,519
906,007

-

$ 56,556,434

NOTE D – INVESTMENT IN ELECTRICAL POWER
The District participates in the California-Oregon Transmission Project (Project), a Joint Powers Authority
(JPA), which is a project of the Department of Energy, Western Area Power Administration. The Project
is governed by a management committee, which is chaired by a representative of the Transmission Agency
of Northern California with each participant in the Project having representation on the Management
Committee. The District applied as a Community Services District and Central Valley Project Contractor,
and received allocation of 1MW (megawatt) of power (capacity and associated energy) in exchange for an
investment as a participant in the construction of the transmission line.
The District has a 0.067% equity interest in the net assets of the Project as defined in the Long-Term
Participation Agreement. The District also has an obligation to finance 0.067% of the net losses of the
Project; it also has the right to receive 0.067% of the operating results of the Project income. The District
is billed monthly for its share of the operations and maintenance costs of the Project, which totaled
approximately $416 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The District’s net investment and its share
of the operating results of the Project are reported as Investment in Electrical Power.
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On January 1, 2006, the District entered into an agreement to lease its share of transmission capacity to the
Sacramento Municipal Utility District. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the amount of revenue
generated from the transmission lease was $16,992 and $17,568, respectively. The agreement is effective
through December 31, 2024.
The Project’s unaudited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, are available from
the California-Oregon Transmission Project at Post Office Box 15140, Sacramento, California 95851-5140.
The following is the summarized unaudited financial information for the Project as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018

2017

Balance sheet
Assets

$ 265,954,164

$ 262,290,472

Liabilities
Net assets

$ 31,809,855
234,144,309

$ 24,043,044
238,247,428

Liabilities and net assets

$ 265,954,164

$ 262,290,472

Income statement
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues

$ 14,025,630
(20,562,890)
(6,537,260)
582,410

$ 14,186,803
(19,961,087)
(5,774,284)
19,696

(5,954,850)

(5,754,588)

1,851,731

1,902,751

Decrease in net assets before adjustments
Adjustments for capital improvements
Net decrease in net assets

$

(4,103,119)

$

(3,851,837)

District’s share of net assets

$

151,596

$

154,427
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The activity of the District’s long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as
follows:
Restated
Balance
July 1, 2017
2010 Certificates of Participation
Add: Unamortized premium

Compensated absences
Unearned lease revenue
Net OPEB obligation
Net pension obligation

Compensated absences
Unearned lease revenue
Net OPEB obligation
Net pension obligation

Balance
June 30, 2018

Due Within
One Year

$ (1,245,000)
(88,175)
(1,333,175)

$ 19,925,000
1,039,732
20,964,732

$ 1,305,000

(96,614)
(1,414)
(584,220)

137,001
124,916
2,892,894
2,514,648

884,919

$ (2,015,423)

$ 26,634,191

$ 1,306,414

Additions

(Reductions)

Balance
June 30, 2017

Due Within
One Year

$ (1,185,000)
(88,175)
(1,273,175)

$ 21,170,000
1,127,907
22,297,907

$ 1,245,000

(153,043)
(1,414)
(545,494)

126,101
126,330
1,275,030
2,034,074

$ (1,973,126)

$ 25,859,442

$ 21,170,000
1,127,907
22,297,907
126,101
126,330
3,180,283
2,034,074

$

$ 27,764,695

$

107,514
296,831
480,574

Balance
July 1, 2016
2010 Certificates of Participation
Less: Unamortized discount

(Reductions)

Additions

$ 22,355,000
1,216,082
23,571,082
125,070
127,744
1,498,235
1,272,753
$ 26,594,884

$

154,074
322,289
761,321

$ 1,237,684

1,305,000

1,414

1,245,000

1,414

$ 1,246,414

The District’s long-term liabilities consist of the following:
2010 Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation: In March 2010, the Corporation issued the
2010 Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation to refund the previously outstanding 1999
Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, fund a reserve fund and pay the cost of issuance as well as a
net original issue premium of $1,763,503. The net original issue premium is being amortized over the life
of the remaining debt. Amortization of the premium totaled $88,175 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, and is included as a reduction of interest expense.
Although the refunding resulted in deferred amount on refunding of $1,247,270, the Corporation in effect
reduced the aggregate debt service payments by approximately $3,253,000 over the next nineteen years and
obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old debt and the new debt service
payments) of $2,334,692. The deferred amount on refunding is being amortized over the remaining life of
the refunded debt. Amortization expense totaled $65,645 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
is included in interest expense. The deferred amount on refunding was $708,428 and $774,073 at June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.
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The 2010 Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation are obligations of the Corporation payable
solely from payments received from the District pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement (Senior
Installment Sale Agreement) between the Corporation and the District. The obligation of the District to
make installment payments is payable solely from net revenues of the District’s water system and certain
funds and accounts created under the Installment Sale Agreement. The Installment Sale Agreement requires
the District to agree to fix, prescribe, and collect rates and charges for its water service which will be at
least sufficient to yield each fiscal year net revenues equal to 120% of the annual debt service in such fiscal
year.
The 2010 Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation have interest rates ranging from 2.5% to
5.0% with maturities through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2027. The 2010 Water Revenue Refunding
Certificates of Participation outstanding totaled $19,925,000 and $21,170,000 at June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Accrued interest payable totaled $151,242 and $161,617 at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
The following is a schedule of maturities for the certificates of participation:

Principal
For the Year Ended June 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2027
2028-2030

Interest

$ 1,305,000
1,355,000
1,410,000
1,470,000
1,540,000
8,735,000
4,110,000

$

881,350
828,150
772,850
707,900
640,350
2,124,625
208,000

$ 19,925,000

$ 6,163,225

Pledged Revenue: The District pledged future water system revenues, net of specified expenses, to repay
the 2010 Certificates of Participation in the original amount of $28,550,000. Proceeds of the Certificates
of Participation were used to refund the previously outstanding 1999 Water Revenue Certificates of
Participation. The Certificates of Participation are payable solely from water customer net revenues and
are payable through November 1, 2029. Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the Certificates
of Participation was $26,088,225 and $28,271,800 at June 30, 2018 and 2017. Total principal and interest
paid was $2,183,575 and the total water system net revenues were $4,589,456 for the year ended June 30,
2018. Total principal and interest paid was $2,184,325 and the total water system net revenues were
$13,580,229 for the year ended June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District’s net revenues were
214% and 583% of debt service payments.
Deferred Lease Revenue: On November 1, 2007, the District entered into a long-term lease agreement with
a private company for certain District facilities to construct a groundwater extraction treatment system,
water conveyance facilities, and groundwater extraction wells that benefit the District’s operations. The
District received $140,000 when the lease was executed, which will be earned at a rate of $1,414 per year
through October 31, 2106.
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Section 148 (f) of the Internal Revenue Code requires issuers of tax-exempt state and local bonds to remit
to the federal government amounts equal to (a) the excess of the actual amounts earned on all “Non-purpose
Investments” allocable to “Gross Proceeds” of an issue of municipal obligations less the amount that would
have been earned if the investments bore a rate equal to the amount that would have been earned if the
investments bore a rate equal to the yield on the issue, plus (b) all income attributable to the excess. Issuers
must make rebate payments at least once every five years and upon final retirement or redemption of the
bonds. There was no arbitrage liability at June 30, 2018. The next arbitrage calculation will be performed
in 2020.
NOTE G – NET POSITION
Restrictions: Restricted net position consists of constraints placed on net asset use through external
requirements imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments or constraints by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Restricted net position consisted of the following at June 30:

Debt service reserve on 2010 Certificates of Participation
Facility Fees - expansion of facilities
Total restricted net position

2018

2017

$ 2,210,255
217,466

$ 2,212,393
189,965

$ 2,427,721

$ 2,402,358

The restrictions are for the following:
Restricted for debt service payments represents debt service reserves required by the related debt
covenants.
Restricted for capital facilities represents unspent facility fees, which are restricted to capital expenses
by Section 66013 of the Water Code of the State of California.
Designations: Designations of unrestricted net position may be imposed by the Board of Directors to reflect
future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources. Designations may be modified,
amended or removed by Board action. Designations included the following as of June 30:

2018
Rate stabilization
Capital replacement
Water treatment plant replacement
Operating reserve
Membrane replacement

$

Total designated net position
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514,349
2,350,501
92,000
3,316,836
580,835

$ 6,854,521

2017
$

508,342
3,193,156
541,679

$ 4,243,177
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The designations are for the following:
Designated for rate stabilization represents the amount to be used to make up a revenue deficiency in a
future year in order to assist in meeting the debt coverage requirements.
Designated for capital replacement is to provide funds in support for the on-going capital replacement
program.
Designated for water treatment plant replacement represents amounts set aside for the eventual
replacement of equipment, facilities and structures at the District’s water treatment plant.
Designated for operating reserve, which represents 33% of budgeted operating and maintenance costs,
plus debt service, is to ensure an adequate balance for working capital requirements, as well as
unanticipated expenditures for operations, maintenance or asset acquisition.
Designated for the replacement of membrane submodules represents amounts budgeted but not yet
spent for membrane replacements.
NOTE H – PENSION PLANS
Plan Descriptions: All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the District’s cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
employers within the State of California. The District participates in the Miscellaneous and PEPRA
Miscellaneous rate plans.
Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at
www.calpers.ca.gov.
Benefits Provided: CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years
of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death
benefit is the following: the 1957 Survivor Benefit or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost
of living adjustments are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows:

Hire date
Benefit formula (at full retirement)
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates - 2017/18
Required employer contribution rates - 2017/18
Required employee contribution rates - 2016/17
Required employer contribution rates - 2016/17

Classic
Miscellaneous
Plan
(Prior to
January 1, 2013)

PEPRA
Miscellaneous
Plan
(On or after
January 1, 2013)

2.0% @ 55
5 years service
monthly for life
50 - 63
1.426% to 2.418%
6.902%
10.411%
6.896%
9.887%

2.0% @ 62
5 years service
monthly for life
52 - 67
1.0% to 2.5%
6.500%
7.383%
6.500%
7.045%

In addition to the contribution rates above, the District was also required to make payments of $67,994 and
$44,140 toward its unfunded actuarial liability during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The Classic Miscellaneous Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible
participants.
Contributions: Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plans
are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
The contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plans were $257,968 and $222,301 for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability of the Plan of $2,514,648 and $2,034,074, respectively.
The District’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 and 2014 using standard update
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s
long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of
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all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2016
Proportion - June 30, 2017
Change - Increase (Decrease)

0.058553%
0.063790%
0.005237%

For the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District had pension expense of $671,488 and $365,343 at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to all Plans combined from the following sources:
2018
2017
Deferred
Deferred
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows
Inflows
Outflows
Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date$
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions
Change in employer's proportion
Differences between the employer's contribution and
the employer's proportionate share of contributions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments
Total

257,968
2,941
562,672
233,494

$ (64,944)
(27,811)

(219,780)
117,943

$ 1,175,018

$ 222,301
6,615

$

212,974

(2,295)
(62,574)
(315)

5,471

(123,488)

546,582
$ (312,535)

$ 993,943

$ (188,672)

The $257,968 and $222,301 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Other amounts reported as net deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30
2019
2020
2021
2022
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$

204,821
287,691
193,529
(81,526)

$

604,515
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Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liabilities in the actuarial valuations for each of the Plans were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
June 30, 2018
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Projected Salary Increase
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

7.15%
2.75%
3.0%
3.3% - 14.2% (1)
7.50% (2)
Derived using CalPERS Membership
Data for all Funds

7.65%
2.75%
3.0%
3.3% - 14.2% (1)
7.50% (2)
Derived using CalPERS Membership
Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on entry age and service
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in June 30, 2018 were based
on the 2010 CalPERS experience study for the period from 1997 to 2007. The underlying mortality
assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in June 30, 2017 were based on the results of a January
2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can be
found on the CalPERS website.
Discount Rate: The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability were 7.15% and 7.65% as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017 respectively. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the
calculation of a discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a
discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none
of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current discount rate is appropriate and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate will be applied to
all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed
report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
In fiscal year 2016-2017, the financial reporting discount rate for the Plan was lowered from 7.65 percent
to 7.15 percent. Deferred outflows of resources for changes of assumptions represent the unamortized
portion of this assumption change.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and longterm market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
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nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and longterm returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for the Plan as of the
measurement dates of June 30. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions
applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative
expenses.

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and
Forestland
Liquidity
Total

2018
2017
New Strategic Real Return Real Return New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b) Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
47.0%
19.0%
6.0%
12.0%
11.0%

4.90%
0.80%
0.60%
6.60%
2.80%

5.38%
2.27%
1.39%
6.63%
5.21%

51.0%
20.0%
6.0%
10.0%
10.0%

5.25%
0.99%
0.45%
6.83%
4.50%

5.71%
2.43%
3.36%
6.95%
5.13%

3.0%
2.0%

3.90%
-0.40%

5.36%
-0.9%

2.0%
1.0%

4.50%
(0.55)%

5.09%
(1.05)%

100.0%

100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plans, calculated
using the discount rate for the Plans, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:
2018
1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability

6.15%

6.65%

$ 4,369,376

$ 3,635,912

7.15%

7.65%

$ 2,514,648

$ 2,034,074

Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability

2017

1% Increase

8.15%

Net Pension Liability

$
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978,529

8.65%
$

710,234
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
Payable to the Pension Plan: At June 30, 2018 and 2017 the District reported payables for the outstanding
amount of contributions to the pension plan of $7,062 and $7,112, respectively.
NOTE I – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The District implemented GASB Statement No. 75 as of July 1, 2017. As a result, GASB Statement No.
45 was effective for fiscal year 2016/17 and GASB Statement No. 75 was effective for fiscal year 2017/18.
The following disclosures are required under GASB Statement No. 45.
Plan Description: The District administers a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment
healthcare (OPEB) plan providing health plan coverage to eligible retired employees and their eligible
dependents. The District offers retirees the option to obtain coverage under the same medical plan as its
active employees if such coverage is offered by the plan. Employees become eligible to retire and receive
healthcare benefits after age 50 with at least 5 years. In addition to 5 years of District eligible service, a
retiree must have an additional 5 years of service with any contracting PERS agency for a total of 10 years
of eligible service. The OPEB Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.
Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may
be amended by the Board of Directors. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements. A trust was established in September 2016. The contribution amounts in the table
below include prefunding contributions and premium payments on current retirees. The District contributed
$545,494 to the plan during the year ended June 30, 2017. The 2017 contribution of $545,494 includes a
$440,000 prefunding contribution to the trust and $105,494 of retiree premium payments.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The District’s Board of
Directors has established a policy of funding the ARC on a pay as you go basis. The following table shows
the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30, 2017, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation to the OPEB plan:

Annual required contribution:
Normal cost
Amortization of UAAL
Interest
Annual OPEB cost (expense)
Contributions made
Change in net OPEB obligation

$

141,201
125,196
55,892
322,289
(545,494)
(223,205)

Net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2016

1,498,235

Net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2017

$ 1,275,030
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The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2017 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Year Ended

Annual
OPEB

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

Net
OPEB
Obligation

June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017

$ 305,174
313,816
322,289

24.1%
27.6%
169.3%

$ 1,271,104
1,498,235
1,275,030

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,562,710, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) as of this date was $1,579,510 and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 162.25%.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past exceptions and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and
the actuarial value of assets consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
In the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal Cost Method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is based on
the District’s own investments. The annual healthcare-cost trend rate is 4.0% per year. The assumptions
also include a 2.75% annual increase in covered payroll and a 2.75% inflationary factor. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2017, was approximately 25 years.
The following disclosures for 2018 are required under GASB Statement No. 75.
Plan Description: The District's defined benefit OPEB plan (the Plan) is a single employer OPEB plan that
provides OPEB benefit for all eligible general employees that have five years of District eligible service
and retire from the District after age 50. In addition to 5 years of District eligible service, a retiree must
have an additional 5 years of service with any contracting PERS agency for a total of 10 years of eligible
service subject to a vesting schedule up to 20 years of service. Employees must retire directly
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from the District and provide 120 days notice requesting the benefit. Eligible employees’ surviving spouses
and dependents until the age of 18 are also eligible for benefits. Benefits continue through the employees
or spouses lifetime. The Plan is administered by CalPERS through participation in California Employers’
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund. The Board of Directors grants the authority to establish and amend
the benefit terms to the CalPERS Board of Trustees (CalPERS Board). CalPERS issues a publicly available
financial report for the CERBT that can be obtained at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications.
Benefits Provided: The Plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees, surviving spouses and their
dependents. Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of the benefits are covered
by the Plan.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: At June 30, 2018, the following current and former employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Active employees
Total

8
26
34

Contributions: The Board of Directors grants the authority to establish and amend the contribution
requirements of the District and employees. Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District’s cash contributions to the trust were $440,000 and benefit
payments were $122,291 resulting in total payments of $562,291.
Net OPEB Liability: The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2017.
Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Valuation date
Measurement date
Actuarial cost method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Mortality rate
Pre-retirement turnover
Healthcare trend rate

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
Entry-age normal cost method
7.0%
2.75%
2.75% per year
7.0%
Derived using CalPERS membership data
Derived using CalPERS membership data
4% annually
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2018 and 2017
NOTE I – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Mortality information for active and retired employees was based on 2009 CalPERS tables. The preretirement turnover information was developed based on the 2009 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous
Employees table created by CalPERS.
The assumed gross return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Percentage of Assumed Gross
Portfolio
Return

Asset Class
Global Equity
Fixed Income
Tresaury Inflation Protected Securities
Real Estate Investment Trusts
Commodities

57.0%
27.0%
5.0%
8.0%
3.0%

4.82%
1.47%
1.29%
3.76%
0.84%

100.0%
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal to
the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability
Net Position
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017
Changes in the year:
Service cost
Interest
Contributions - employer
Actual investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018
(measurement date June 30, 2017)

$ 3,180,283

$ 3,180,283

75,328
221,503

75,328
221,503
(545,162)
(39,214)
156

(105,162)
191,669

$ 545,162
39,214
(156)
(105,162)
479,058

$ 3,371,952

$ 479,058
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(287,389)
$ 2,892,894

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2018 and 2017
NOTE I – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current discount rate:

Net OPEB liability

1% Decrease
6%

Current
Discount Rate
7%

1% Increase
8%

$ 2,543,942

$ 2,892,894

$ 3,295,512

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following
presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Net OPEB liability

Current
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
Trend Rates

1% Increase

$ 2,543,942

$ 3,295,512

$ 2,892,894

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CERBT financial report at www.calpers.ca.gov.
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB:
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $257,773. At June 30, 2018,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources totaling $562,291 for contributions subsequent to the
measurement date. This amount will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the following
fiscal year.
Payable to the OPEB Plan: At June 30, 2018, the District had no contributions outstanding to the Plan
required for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Age-adjusted Premiums Not Used: As a general rule, Actuarial Standard of Practice 6 (ASOP 6) indicates
retiree costs should be based on actual claim costs or age-adjusted premiums. However, the Plan’s net
OPEB liability was not computed using age-adjusted premiums because the District’s actuary did not
consider the use of age-adjusted premiums to be appropriate under the circumstances. This is due to the
District participating in the CalPERS health insurance plan, PEMHCA. PEMHCA uses blended premiums
for active and retired participants and is expected to continue this practice into the future. Contributions
based on age-adjusted premiums would be larger than contributions based on actual premiums charged by
PEMHCA. The actuary believes this would overstate contributions to the CERBT that would not be able
to be recovered by the District. Many other actuaries believe it is appropriate to use age-adjusted premiums
when computing net OPEB liabilities under GASB Statement No. 75. The District’s net OPE liability
would have been significantly larger had it been computed using age-adjusted premiums.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2018 and 2017
NOTE J – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The District implemented a phased meter implementation program that entailed installing meters for all
District customers. This project was completed in 2013, except for six (6) remaining accounts. The District
completed the two (2) mainline projects required to meter the final six (6) accounts. As of June 30, 2017,
all District customers were metered and on metered billing.
The District received grant funding for specific purposes that is subject to review and audit by the funding
agency. Such potential audits could result in a request for reimbursement for expenses disallowed under
the terms and conditions of the funding source. Management is of the opinion that no material liabilities
will result from such potential audits.
The District completed the American River Pipeline Conveyance Project that was entered into in May 2015.
As a result of the project, the District began supplying Golden State Water Company (GSWC) with treated
water on January 1, 2017. The original sum of the contract was $4,815,000 of which $4,715,000 would be
funded by Aerojet Rocketdyne (Aerojet) and $100,000 by the District. The funding commitment by Aerojet
Rocketdyne was secured by an executed reimbursement agreement effective May 18, 2015. This agreement
remained in effect until completion of the project in February 2017 and all costs associated with the project
were reconciled between Aerojet Rocketdyne and the District.
As of June 30, 2018, the sum total of the construction contract was $4,920,277. Aerojet Rocketdyne agreed
to fund $4,796,810 and the District funded $123,467. The District also incurred environmental restoration
costs for the clean-up and disposal of abandoned water assets along the American River and natural habitat
restoration, fulfilling a prior commitment the District had made to the community. As of June 30, 2018,
these costs totaled $626,475 and were not reimbursable by Aerojet Rocketdyne.
NOTE K – INSURANCE
The District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority
(ACWA/JPIA) a public entity risk pool of California water agencies, for general and auto liability, public
official’s liability, property damage, fidelity insurance and workers compensation liability. ACWA/JPIA
provides insurance through the pool up to a certain level, beyond which group purchased commercial excess
insurance is obtained.
The District pays an annual premium to ACWA/JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance
premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs
to operate the ACWA/JPIA. The District’s deductibles and maximum coverage are as follows:

Coverage
General and Auto Liability
(includes public officials liability)
Property Damage
Fidelity
Workers Compensation liability

ACWA/JPIA

Commercial
Insurance

Deductible

$ 5,000,000

$ 55,000,000

None

100,000
100,000
2,000,000

500,000,000

$500 to 50,000
1,000
None

Statutory

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss to cover all claims for risk
of loss to which the District is exposed. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2018 and 2017
NOTE L – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
Under normal operating conditions, the District extracts approximately 80% of its water from the American
River and 20% from groundwater wells. Actions taken by the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) can affect the amount of water the District is able to extract from the American River. Water
conservation continues to be a focus of the SWRCB with recently proposed legislation focused on long
term water use reductions. The District has continued to monitor and provide input on the proposed
legislation that will have future financial impacts.
NOTE M — OUTSIDE BOUNDARY SALES AND AGREEMENTS
The District completed the American River Pipeline Conveyance Project in partnership with Aerojet
Rocketdyne and Golden State Water Company to annually provide 5,000 acre feet of replacement water
supply to GSWC. The District negotiated and signed two Agreements in August 2016 as part of this
project.
The District entered into a Capacity Sale Agreement with Aerojet Rocketdyne to purchase rights to
capacity in the District's Bajamont Water Treatment Plant (BWTP) on behalf of Golden State Water
Company. Aerojet will pay the District a $9,400,000 capacity fee over a six year period. As of June 30,
2018, Aerojet has paid $3,800,000 to the District and will pay the remaining $5,600,000 in annual
payments of $1,400,000 due on July 1 through 2022. The next payment is due July 1, 2019.
In connection with the sale of capacity, the District converted a portion of its outstanding 2010 Certificates
of Participation from governmental bonds to tax-exempt private activity bonds. As a result of this action,
$8,315,000 of the Certificates were treated as reissued for federal tax purposes on August 24, 2016. There
was no effect on the tax-exempt status of the bonds and the remaining principal and interest due remained
unchanged due to the bond conversion.
The District entered into a second agreement in August 2016 between the District and GSWC for the
diversion, treatment, and delivery of water through the American River Pipeline. GSWC pays a
proportionate share of three components: 1) the fixed and variable operations and maintenance costs
associated with the production of water; 2) the capital asset costs of the BWTP and intake structures; 3)
the costs incurred by the District for the replacement of membranes at the BWTP. The District billed
GSWC $817,991 under the terms of this agreement during the year ended June 30, 2018.
NOTE N – CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement required the
District to recognize in its financial statements the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources for the District’s OPEB plan. Due to implementation of this Statement, the
OPEB liability increased by $1,905,253, deferred outflows of resources increased by $545,162 and net
position decreased by $1,360,091 as of July 1, 2017.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
PENSION LIABILITY
LAST TEN YEARS
June 30, 2018
Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroll - measurement period
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
a percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

$
$

June 30, 2017

0.063790%
2,514,648
1,854,585

$
$

0.058553%
2,034,074
1,822,452

June 30, 2016
$
$

0.046392%
1,272,753
1,756,975

June 30, 2015
0.048538%
1,199,609
1,760,777

$
$

130.67%

111.61%

72.44%

68.13%

81.35%

82.90%

78.40%

79.82%

Notes to Schedule:
Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which
occurred after June 30, 2014 as they have minimal cost impact.
Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was changed from 7.50% in 2015 to 7.65% in 2016 and 2017 and to 7.15% in 2018.
Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015. No information was available prior to this date.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN (OPEB)
LAST TEN YEARS
June 30, 2018
Contractually required contribution
(actuarially determined)
$
257,968
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions
(257,968)
Contribution deficiency (excess)
$
Covered payroll - fiscal year
$ 2,025,447
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll
12.74%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date:
June 30, 2015
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Valuation cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

$

222,301

$

198,100

$

160,692

$
$

(222,301)
1,854,585

$
$

(198,100)
1,822,452

$
$

(160,692)
1,756,975

11.98%
June 30, 2014

10.86%
June 30, 2013

9.15%
June 30, 2012

Entry age normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed
15 years
5-year smoothed market
2.75%
3.0%, average, including inflation of 2.75%
7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation
Retirement age
50 years
Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015, thus information prior to this date was not presented.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF THE OTHER
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Valuation Date
July 1, 2011
July 1, 2014

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) - Entry
Age
(b)

$

-

$

2,338,710
2,562,710

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)
(b-a)
$

62

2,338,710
2,562,710

Funded
Ratio
(b/a)

Covered
Payroll
(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
((b-a)/c)

0.00%
0.00%

$ 1,521,836
1,579,510

153.68%
162.25%

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2018
Statutorily required contribution - employer fiscal year
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions
Contribution deficiency
(excess)

$

105,162
(562,291)

$

(457,129)

Covered-employee payroll - employer fiscal year

$

2,025,447

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date
Measurement period - fiscal year ended

5.19%

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017

An actuarially determined contribution rate was not calculated. The required contributions reported represent retiree
premium payments.

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was
available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND
RELATED RATIOS
Measurement Period
Total OPEB liability:
Service cost
Interest
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning

2017
$

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

75,328
221,503
(105,162)
191,669
3,180,283

$ 3,371,952

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b)

$

545,162
39,214
(105,162)
(156)
479,058
-

$

479,058

$ 2,892,894

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered-employee payroll - measurement period

14.21%
$ 1,854,585

Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll
Notes to schedule:
Valuation date
Measurement period - fiscal year ended

155.99%

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017

Benefit changes. None.
Changes in assumptions. During 2018, the discount rate was changed from 7.5% to 7.0%.
Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was
available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.
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DESCRIPTION OF STATISTICAL SECTION
This section of the District’s comprehensive annual financial statement report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statement, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial
health.
Financial Trends
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most significant local
revenue-sources of retail water sales.
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the District’s financial activities
take place.
Operating Information
This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the District’s financial report relates to the service the District provides and
activities it performs.
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
LAST TEN YEARS

Net Position:
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

$ 15,485,951
2,373,118

$ 14,016,546
2,445,917

$ 13,904,074
2,452,846

$ 13,212,659
2,482,788

$ 35,499,050
2,449,216

$ 35,284,574
2,258,493

$ 34,539,863
2,290,249

$ 34,148,344
2,360,084

$ 35,032,600
2,402,358

$ 35,823,870
2,427,721

3,486,496

3,227,588

2,038,147

2,358,733

4,013,869

4,855,264

3,449,234

4,953,092

13,540,261

12,806,906

$ 21,345,565

$ 19,690,051

$ 18,395,067

$ 18,054,180

$ 41,962,135

$ 42,398,331

$ 40,279,346

$ 41,461,520

$ 50,975,219

$ 51,058,497

*2012 net position restated due to the implementation of GASB 65.
*2013 net position was restated upon completion of a multi-year long project that examined the existence, condition, and cost basis of the District's existing capital assets.
*2014 and prior do not reflect the net pension liability adjustment for GASB No. 68 and 71 as this information is not available.
Source:
District Administrative Department
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
LAST TEN YEARS
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Connection, tap, and other fees
Wholesale water sales, net
Capacity sales
Water treatment and delivery charges
Total Operating Revenues

$ 8,415,154
24,770
8,439,924

$ 8,042,085
44,188
8,086,273

$ 8,117,277
42,927
8,160,204

$ 8,896,233
43,297
8,939,530

$ 9,912,458
33,721
9,946,179

$ 9,624,391
42,357
9,666,748

$ 8,843,732
59,058
49,740
8,952,530

$ 9,319,543
51,174
122,625
9,493,342

$ 9,863,394
54,928
9,400,000
413,720
19,732,042

$ 10,859,913
53,627
817,991
11,731,531

Operating Expenses:
General and administrative
Transmission and distribution
Pumping and treatment
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

$ 1,980,127
1,091,740
1,736,726
3,605,306
8,413,899

$ 2,221,206
995,998
1,674,359
3,614,595
8,506,158

$ 2,456,377
956,844
1,727,297
3,530,755
8,671,273

$ 2,303,993
736,020
1,725,362
3,189,802
7,955,177

$ 2,258,123
1,003,343
1,871,412
2,597,394
7,730,272

$ 2,723,270
1,152,781
1,799,359
2,603,442
8,278,852

$ 2,400,500
1,219,486
2,004,962
2,546,331
8,171,279

$ 2,224,824
1,179,274
2,343,249
2,492,258
8,239,605

$ 2,991,231
1,388,069
2,664,920
2,375,778
9,419,998

$ 3,185,882
1,649,564
2,306,629
2,337,538
9,479,613

26,025

(419,885)

(511,069)

984,353

2,215,907

1,387,896

781,251

1,253,737

10,312,044

2,251,918

77,365
18,017
16,384
13,587
(1,537,737)
(1,412,384)

128,204
61,661
15,656
6,465
(67,526)
(1,530,177)
(1,385,717)

4,081
22,342
14,300
2,130
(1,290,117)
(1,247,264)

2,884
56,550
14,491
2,720
22,610
(1,189,111)
(1,089,856)

1,598
133,371
13,614
1,560
(34,142)
(1,150,275)
(1,034,274)

5,843
121,550
11,926
2,785
(10,581)
(1,107,462)
(975,939)

5,897
28,356
13,699
44,587
(16,178)
(1,056,587)
(980,226)

62,172
21,271
16,221
20,772
7,174
(1,017,921)
(890,311)

12,047
15,284
11,116
5,379
(723,188)
(643)
(966,921)
(1,646,926)

33,558
21,857
14,161
13,723
(25,406)
(905,671)
(847,778)

(1,386,359)

(1,805,602)

(1,758,333)

(105,503)

1,181,633

411,957

(198,975)

363,426

8,665,118

1,404,140

120,628
120,628

150,088
150,088

463,349
463,349

105,935
105,935

221,590
221,590

24,239
24,239

31,714
31,714

43,748
775,000
818,748

846,898
1,683
848,581

39,229
39,229

$(1,265,731)

$(1,655,514)

$(1,294,984)

432

$ 1,403,223

436,196

$ (167,261)

$ 1,182,174

$ 9,513,699

$ 1,443,369

Net Income from Operations
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income earned
Other revenue
Income from investment in electrical power
Reimbursements
Pass-through grant payment
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
Capital Contributions:
Facility fees and other capital revenues
Capital grant revenue
Total Capital Contributions
Changes in Net Position*

$

*2014 and prior do not reflect the net pension liability adjustment for GASB No. 68 and 71 as this information is not available.
Source:
District Administrative Department
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
WATER SALES BY TYPE OF CUSTOMER
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
LAST TEN YEARS
Water Sales:
Residential

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

$ 6,791,871

$ 6,640,350

$ 7,039,303

$ 7,815,341

$ 8,799,289

$ 8,463,689

$ 7,762,144

$ 8,188,150

$ 8,595,948

$ 9,458,984

Non-residential
Total Water Sales

1,623,283
$ 8,415,154

1,401,735
$ 8,042,085

1,077,974
$ 8,117,277

1,080,892
$ 8,896,233

1,113,169
$ 9,912,458

1,160,702
$ 9,624,391

1,081,588
$ 8,843,732

1,131,393
$ 9,319,543

1,267,446
$ 9,863,394

1,400,929
$10,859,913

Total Water Deliveries (AF)

10,983

9,981

9,531

9,801

10,276

9,640

7,867

6,947

7,652

8,400

998.38

$ 1,124.16

$ 1,341.52

$ 1,289.00

$ 1,292.85

Rate per Acre Foot (AF)

$

766.20

$

805.74

$

851.67

$

907.69

$

Source:
District Administrative Department
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964.62

$

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL RATE PAYERS 2018 AND 2009
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS PRIOR

2018
Rate Payers
Carmichael Recreation & Park District
Ancil Hoffman Park
Del Campo High School
Crestview Mary Lynn LLC
Hastings Ranch Apartments
Carmichael Park Apartments LLC
WG Carmichael Oaks
Linden Lane Apartments LLC
M&M Properties
Ponderosa Westwood LLC
Heritage Oaks Apartments
Crestview Rampart LLC
Total
Total Water Sales

Revenues
Collected
$
105,836
94,383
43,844
36,384
35,871
34,812
28,589
26,861
26,367
24,902

$

457,849

$

10,859,913

Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

2009
Percent of
Total Water Sales
0.97%
0.87%
0.40%
0.34%
0.33%
0.32%
0.26%
0.25%
0.24%
0.23%

4.22%

Source:
District Administrative Department
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Revenues
Collected
$
88,916
169,824
34,029
27,443
31,386
28,818

Rank
2
1
3
6
4
5

Percent of
Total Water Sales
1.06%
2.02%
0.40%
0.33%
0.37%
0.34%

22,536
21,488

7
8

0.27%
0.26%

9
10

$

18,747
18,711
461,898

0.22%
0.22%
5.49%

$

8,415,154

This page intentionally left blank.
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Debt Capacity
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
RATIOS OF O/S DEBT BY TYPE AND NUMBER OF CONNECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS

Debt:
1999 Certificates of Participation
2010 Certificates of Participation
2010 Subordinate Installment Sale Agreement
Total Debt
Number of Service Connections
Debt Per Capita

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

$29,972,085
$29,972,085

$
29,061,539
1,782,011
$30,843,550

$
29,406,958
1,399,599
$30,806,557

$
28,298,783
1,005,250
$29,304,033

$
27,165,608
597,964
$27,763,572

$
26,002,433
178,175
$26,180,608

$
24,809,257
$24,809,257

$
23,571,082
$23,571,082

$
22,297,907
$22,297,907

20,964732
$20,964,732

11,188

11,330

11,215

11,748

11,884

11,768

11,607

11,693

11,685

11,912

2,678.95

2,722.29

2,746.91

2,494.38

2,336.21

2,224.73

2,137.44

2,015.83

1,908.25

1,759.97

Source:
District Administrative Department
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2018
$

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE
LAST TEN YEARS
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Net Revenue

$ 3,708,695

$ 3,489,258

$ 3,062,539

$ 4,174,154

$ 4,936,774

$ 3,991,338

$ 3,327,582

$ 3,866,431

$ 12,733,331

$ 4,672,755

Debt Service

2,364,283

2,361,776

2,152,089

2,198,775

2,197,962

2,198,775

2,190,550

2,196,200

2,184,325

2,183,575

157%

148%

142%

190%

225%

182%

152%

176%

583%

214%

Coverage

Source:
District Administrative Department
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Demographic and Economic
Information
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS

Personal Income(1)*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

$ 53,560,115

$ 52,811,960

$ 54,861,602

$ 60,668,975

$ 63,512,541

$ 65,126,187

$ 69,870,482

$ 72,878,458

N/A

N/A

1,400,949

1,422,094

1,436,105

1,450,121

1,462,131

1,482,026

1,501,335

1,514,460

N/A

N/A

48,122

N/A

N/A

5.4%

4.7%

N/A

Population(1)
Per Capita Personal Income(1)
Unemployment Rate(2)

$

38,231
11.3%

$

37,137
12.8%

$

38,202
12.1%

$

41,837
10.6%

$

43,438
8.8%

$

43,944

$

46,539

7.3%

*Amounts are expressed in thousands.
**Information on Demographic and Economic statistics are for the County of Sacramento since Carmichael is unincorporated and is reported
under the County of Sacramento. Separate demographic and economic statistical information for Carmichael are not available.

Sources:
(1)

Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce

(2)

California State Employment Development Department
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6.0%

$

CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
TOP TEN EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS PRIOR
2017**
Employers
State of California
Sacramento County
UC Davis Health System
US Government
Sutter Health Sacramento Sierra Region
Kaiser Permanente
Dignity Health
Intel Corp.
Apple Inc.
Elk Grove Unified School District
City of Sacramento
San Juan Unified School District
Sacramento City Unified School District
Los Rios Community College District
Total
Total Employed by Sacramento County(2)

Total
Employee
74,462
12,514
10,467
10,322
9,911
10,517
8,039
6,000
5,000
4,620

Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

151,852

2008**
Percent of
Total Employed
11.17%
1.88%
1.57%
1.55%
1.49%
1.58%
1.21%
0.90%
0.75%
0.69%

22.79%

666,500

Total
Employee
60,045
14,488
7,901

Rank
1
2
3

Percent of
Total Employed
9.37%
2.26%
1.23%

7,140
6,805

4
6

1.11%
1.06%

6,800

7

1.06%

5,230
5,775
7,000
6,000
127,184

10
9
5
8

0.82%
0.90%
1.09%
0.94%
19.85%

640,800

*Information on Demographic and Economic statistics are for the County of Sacramento since Carmichael is unincorporated and is reported under the County of
Sacramento. Separate demographic and economic statistical information for Carmichael are not available.
**Data for 2018 unavailable.
Sources:
(1)

Sacramento Business Journal

(2)

California State Employment Development Department
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Operating Information
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CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS
2009
Water Services:
Number of Service Connections
Annual Demand in AF
Average Daily Demand in MGD
Maximum Day Demand in MGD
Leak Repairs:
Main Lines
Service Lines
Meters:
Replacement
Register Change Outs
Service Lines:
Replacement
Main Line Valves:
Replacement
Hydrants:
Replacement
Major Facilities:
Wells
Tank
Booster Station
Pressure Regulation Valves
Miles of Pipeline*
Personnel (FTE)
Admin Services
Distribution
Production
Total (FTE)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

11,188
10,983
9.80
18.39

11,330
9,981
8.91
18.43

11,215
9,531
8.51
17.21

11,748
9,801
8.75
15.52

11,884
10,276
9.17
16.82

11,768
9,640
8.61
16.62

11,607
7,867
7.02
13.22

11,693
6,947
6.20
11.36

11,685
7,652
6.83
13.25

11,912
8,400
7.50
14.02

57
126

46
139

45
160

59
98

55
100

54
95

52
93

35
68

43
72

43
61

826
23

1,107
28

489
-

702
25

239
82

18
359

8
1,129

1,089
76

293
720

1,156
1,369

101

71

70

96

76

119

143

74

78

92

6

1

10

1

12

12

5

11

4

2

7

5

5

7

11

3

13

1

6

2

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154

5
2
2
2
154.21

13
13
5
31

13
11
5
29

14
11
5
30

12
8
5
25

12
8
5
25

12
8
6
26

13
8
5
26

13
8
5
26

14
9
6
29

14
9
6
29

*This information was not tracked until 2016.
Source:
District Finance Department
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Carmichael, California

Prepared by:
The Administrative Services Department

86

AGENDA ITEM 9

AGENDA ITEM 10

AGENDA ITEM 11

Sacramento LAFCo Special District Advisory Committee Membership Roster October, 2018

OFFICE “A” 1/18 – 12/19
Initial

First

Last

District

Phone

Rich

Lozano

Cosumnes CSD

Michael

Hanson

Arcade Creek R&PD

Form 700

Email address

916-416-0486
510-386-0345

mhanson007@sbcglobal.net.

Becky

McDaniel

Rio Linda/ Elverta R&PD

Work: (916) 9273802 ext. 119
825-0201(M)

Bill

Andrews

Arden Park R&PD

916-838-9309(M)

bandrewscsm@comcast.net

Greg

Fishman

SMUD

916-802-9323

gbfishman@gmail.com

Michael

Yearwood

Cordova R&P District

916-606-6569(M)

myearwood@crpd.com

Steve

Johns

American River FCD

916-769-0428

Steve.Johns@smud.org

bmcdaniel@fecrpd.com

OFFICE “B” TERMS 1/19 – 12/20
Vacant

ALL

OFFICE “C” COMMISSIONERS
Paul

Green, Jr.
(Alt.)

Rio Linda/ Elverta Comm. Water District

468-6283
cell: 916-208-0736

Gay

Jones

Ron

Greenwood
(Chair)

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

prgreenjr1@juno.com

h2ogay@pacbell.net

office: 916-859-4305

Carmichael Water District

712-4442

rgreenwood@golyon.com
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Voluntary flow agreements gain
more time
Issue Date: November 14, 2018
By Christine Souza
Andrea Fuller, senior biologist for the fishery consultant firm FISHBIO, points out river restoration work
for the Modesto and Turlock irrigation districts on the Tuolumne River. Work includes channel and
riparian restoration, sediment management and addressing salmon predators. The districts are among
the water users seeking voluntary agreements to avoid state-imposed flow plans for fisheries in San
Joaquin River tributaries.
With four weeks remaining until the State Water Resources Control Board plans to take final action on a
river-flows plan affecting the northern San Joaquin Valley, water users are working to negotiate
voluntary agreements.
After receiving requests from Gov. Brown and Lt. Gov. Newsom, the board voted last week to postpone
final action on the plan until Dec. 12. The board originally set last week as the deadline to adopt the plan
proposed by its staff, which would redirect flows in the Stanislaus, Tuolumne and Merced rivers for
fishery purposes.
Brown and Newsom, who was elected last week to succeed Brown as governor, requested that the
board postpone the vote to allow for further negotiations on voluntary agreements with affected water
users.
John Davids, Modesto Irrigation District assistant general manager of water operations, said the district
has negotiated with the state for several years and is hopeful an agreement can be reached. The district
draws water from the Tuolumne River and has said the board plan would cause significant water losses
and economic disruption in the area.
"We continue to participate as we always have, in good faith," Davids said, "and we certainly hope the
extension that we received will give us that room to continue to negotiate and hopefully be in a position
where we can be successful and come back to the state board with a durable agreement."
He said voluntary agreements would be more successful "than anything that would be mandated by the
state board" and would avoid "lengthy, costly, protracted litigation" about the flows plan.
Michael Frantz, a Turlock Irrigation District director who operates a nursery along the Tuolumne River in
Hickman, said he has long advocated for voluntary agreements.
"We (at TID) believe we can have ecosystem improvements while maintaining a community's water
supply reliability," Frantz said. "With the governor's involvement, I'm confident that we can continue to
move forward. We have moved measurably in the last 60 days and I think that foreshadows what we
can get done (by mid-December)."

Merced Irrigation District General Counsel Phil McMurray also spoke positively about negotiations, but
noted, "there is still a lot of work to do. A settlement is really the only way to make sure we get all of the
interests involved."
California Farm Bureau Federation President Jamie Johansson welcomed the water board decision to
postpone action on the flows plan.
"Voluntary approaches that combine habitat improvements with well-planned, functional river flows
offer the best hope for helping fish while maintaining the water rights people depend on," Johansson
said.
Farm Bureau and 53 other organizations urged the water board this summer to reject the staff proposal
and to pursue voluntary agreements that would lessen flow amounts but be more beneficial to fish
populations.
"We're pleased the governor and governor-elect recognize the clear benefits of voluntary actions,"
Johansson said. "Imposing stringent regulatory requirements based on policies that have failed in the
past would damage an important region of California without helping fish. We will work with the
governor and governor-elect to assure that any future agreements lead to success for the environment
and the economy."
Chuck Bonham, director of the state Department of Fish and Wildlife, and Karla Nemeth, director of the
state Department of Water Resources, who have been in talks with water users, told the board progress
has been made.
"In the last two months, since you gave us additional time, we've made more progress than in the last
two years combined," Bonham said.
He suggested to the board that further negotiations would produce "a systemwide outcome" that yields
"immediate, implementable results" and that includes a revenue structure that would help with
"massive restoration."
Nemeth said she hopes the state agencies, water users and others can return in a few weeks with a plan
that has enough detail and support across the water user community—including from environmental
groups—and that would be "actionable and enforceable."
Even though they're not directly affected by the proceedings related to the San Joaquin River tributaries,
water users from the Sacramento River region addressed the board as well. The second phase of the
board plan will address flow requirements for the Sacramento and its tributaries.
Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District General Manager Thad Bettner, on behalf of more than 25 state and
federal water agencies, said the Sacramento River agencies "are working diligently, making progress on
voluntary agreements."
Shortly before joining with two other members of the state water board who voted in favor of
postponing action on the San Joaquin River tributaries, board chair Felicia Marcus said she hoped the
delay would allow parties to the discussions to abandon "warring narratives and factions."
Saying she voted for the delay "reluctantly and with hope," Marcus said she would support the idea
"with my eyes wide open and a firm commitment to act in December."

When will it rain, clearing out smoke,
cutting California fire risk?
Tropicaltidbits.com Forecasters say computer models are showing increasing chances of rain next week,
particularly on Thanksgiving, which should reduce smoke and fire risk across the state.
By PAUL ROGERS | progers@bayareanewsgroup.com | Bay Area News Group
PUBLISHED: November 13, 2018 at 2:24 pm | UPDATED: November 14, 2018 at 4:44 am
For the past week, California has been locked in a tense, daily mix of choking thick smoke and
dangerously dry, windy fire-weather conditions. But an end might be around the corner.
Meteorologists said Tuesday that two storm systems appear to be developing over the Pacific Ocean,
with rain increasingly likely next week for most of the state.
“It looks like the storm door is going to open,” said Jan Null, a meteorologist with Golden Gate Weather
Services in Saratoga.
Atmospheric conditions could change. But for now, the storms are on track to bring about 1 inch of rain
to the Bay Area by the Friday after Thanksgiving , according to computer models, with more in the areas
near the Camp Fire in Butte County and perhaps half an inch in Southern California, where fires continue
to threaten homes in the Malibu and Ventura County areas.
The rain is desperately needed to wash high levels of soot out of the air that have triggered health
advisories across Northern California and the Central Valley, including parts of Southern California.
On Tuesday, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District declared a “Spare the Air” day for every day
through Friday, which makes it illegal for people to burn wood outdoors or in indoor fireplaces. Smoke
from fires is linked to asthma, bronchitis and lung disease and is especially harmful for children and the
elderly, the agency noted.
Much of the smoke in the Bay Area has been blowing down from Butte County where the Camp Fire
leveled the town of Paradise and killed at least 42 people, the deadliest fire in California history. But
starting next week, the winds will shift, forecasters say.
“Next Wednesday we are looking for a change in wind direction ahead of the cold front,” said Steve
Anderson, forecaster with the National Weather Service in Monterey. “The smoke should be blown out
by then. The smoke will be blown to the northeast, to Nevada, Oregon, Idaho, Washington, Canada.”
Anderson said that the coming shift in the weather should also help firefighters considerably.
“The amount of rain and where it will fall the most is still up in the air, but things are looking pretty
good,” he said. “The humidity will go way up. It will help lay down the fire and help the fire crews to
make faster progress on it.”

The Weather Channel’s computer models forecast a 40 percent chance of rain every day from
Thanksgiving Day through Tuesday, Nov. 27, for San Francisco, and a 40 percent chance in Los Angeles
next Wednesday, Friday and Saturday.
For weeks, meteorologists say, a large ridge of high pressure air has blocked storms from reaching
California. But supercomputers used by the National Weather Service and the European Union both
show changes over the Pacific, with pressure dropping, and creating storm conditions by early next
week north of Hawaii and east of Japan.
Those systems are forecast to move toward California and deliver showers as the high pressure ridge
moves east over the Rocky Mountains.
“This is a hopeful pattern we’re seeing,” Null said. “Both models show a breakdown of the ridge.”
Meanwhile, the National Weather Service’s Climate Prediction Center in Maryland on Tuesday forecast
an “above average” chance of precipitation over the next 14 days in Northern and Southern California.
Null and Anderson both noted that the farther away a forecast date is, the greater the chance that it
could change. By Monday, however, meteorologists will have more precise information, with satellite
images to pinpoint whether the storms will come through, as predicted, or fizzle.
“For now, it looks like improving air quality next week and rain finally coming back,” said Anderson. ”
That’s something to be thankful for on Thanksgiving.”

Voters rejected Proposition 3. Where
now on water?
BY PETER GLEICK
November 12, 2018 04:50 PM
Updated November 13, 2018 12:06 PM
California voters have rejected Proposition 3, the $8.9 billion water bond, sending a message to
politicians. But what is that message?
It can’t be that the state’s water problems have been solved. They haven’t been.
It can’t be that Californians don’t care about water. Poll after poll shows we do.
And it certainly doesn’t mean that more money – and potentially a lot of money – isn’t still needed to
modernize our water systems. It is.
Maybe the message is that it’s time to look for a different approach. Instead of a costly bond that puts
more pressure on the state’s general fund, legislators should consider fees tied directly to the amount of
water people use.
California voters have approved about $60 billion (in 2018 dollars) for water projects since 1960. They
just approved more than $4 billion in June for new land and water bonds. Proposition 3, which would
have cost taxpayers about $17 billion over 40 years with interest factored in, might have been too much
for voters to bear.
A water user fee would be simple: a tiny charge on all surface and groundwater withdrawals. We have
similar fees already on energy, cell phones, and other basic utility services.
A modest user fee of only $20 per acre-foot of water, or $0.0006 per gallon, would generate $800
million per year. Such a fee would raise my home water bill by less than 50 cents per month.
The money raised should be committed to water projects with a clear public benefit and communities
that cannot afford adequate water services. It could fund access to water in disadvantaged communities
that still, inexcusably, don’t have consistent safe and affordable water; provide needed capital to farms
and cities for water-efficiency improvements or wastewater treatment and reuse; improve and
accelerate groundwater storage projects; restore ecosystems; support integrated regional water
management planning, and more.
The fee could exempt or rebate low-income consumers. Farmers could bear such a fee, and money
could be returned to them to invest in reducing water use and improving its quality. The fee would
require more accurate and consistent monitoring and measurement of all water uses, which is long
overdue.

The money can be managed and allocated through competitive grants run by an independent
commission – perhaps the State Water Resources Control Board or the California Water Commission –
with transparent oversight and stakeholder and public input.
California’s legislature has debated versions of this idea for a long time, including two bills this year (SB
844 and 845) that would have created a fund to help provide water for one million Californians who lack
safe and affordable water. These bills enjoyed bipartisan support, but politics — and perhaps the
thought that Proposition 3 would let legislators off the hook — killed them. New versions should be
reintroduced.
Let’s move away from massive water bonds designed by – and supporting – special interests. More
permanent and carefully managed funds must be found if we are to support the necessary
improvements to California’s critical water systems. A resource fee would be a major step in the right
direction.
Peter H. Gleick is president-emeritus of Pacific Institute.

El Niño has an 80% chance of forming
this winter, scientists predict
Doyle Rice, USA TODAY Published 12:33 p.m. ET Nov. 8, 2018 | Updated 10:09 a.m. ET Nov. 9, 2018
Climate troublemaker El Niño has an 80 percent chance of developing this winter, federal scientists
announced Thursday.
"The official forecast favors the formation of a weak El Niño," NOAA's Climate Prediction Center said in
its monthly forecast. The center gives it an 80 percent chance of continuing through the winter.
The chances have increased since early October, when climate scientists gave it a 70 to 75 percent
chance of forming.
El Niño is a natural climate pattern that's defined as unusually warm seawater in the central Pacific
Ocean. It affects weather patterns in the USA and around the world.
Although forecast to be on the weak side, El Niño "may still influence the winter season by bringing
wetter conditions across the southern United States and warmer, drier conditions to parts of the North,”
Mike Halpert, deputy director of the prediction center, said in a statement last month.
This episode has a 55 to 60 percent chance of lasting into the spring, the CPC said.

Here's how El Nino typically impacts U.S. winter weather. However, not all impacts occur during every
event, and their strength and exact location can vary. (Photo: Climate Prediction Center)
The entire natural climate cycle is officially known as El Niño – Southern Oscillation (ENSO), which
swings between warmer and cooler seawater in the tropical Pacific. The cycle is the primary factor
government scientists consider when announcing their winter weather forecast.
The cooler pattern, known as La Niña, was dominant the past two winters. The most recent El Niño
occurred during the winter of 2015-16. That was a particularly strong episode, which led to weatherrelated crop damage, fires and flash floods, Reuters said.
The forecast released Thursday said the government's ENSO alert system remains as an "El Niño Watch."
Once El Niño develops, the alert level will rise to "El Niño Advisory,"
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2018 Regular Board Meeting Schedule
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

22
26
19
16
21 (Public Hearing)
18 (Public Hearing)
16
20
17
15
19
17

Meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. at the District’s meeting room located at:
7837 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Carmichael.

December 2018
SUNDAY

MONDAY

December 2018
Su
2
9
16
23
30

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

Mo
3
10
17
24
31

Tu

We

4
11
18
25

5
12
19
26

THURSDAY

Th
6
13
20
27

January 2019
Fr

Sa

7
14
21
28

1
8
15
22
29

FRIDAY

Su
6
13
20
27

Mo

Tu

We

Th

Fr

Sa

7
14
21
28

1
8
15
22
29

2
9
16
23
30

3
10
17
24
31

4
11
18
25

5
12
19
26

SATURDAY

Dec 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

14

15

6:00pm RWA Holiday
Event

9

10

11

12

13
9:00am SGA Board
Meeting (@
RWA/SGA office)

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

25

26

27

28

29

7:00pm Board Meeting
(Board Room)

23

24

Christmas Day (Holiday)

30

31

8:30am RWA-Exec
Comm Mtg @ RWA

January 2019
SUNDAY

MONDAY

January 2019
Su
6
13
20
27

February 2019

Mo

Tu

We

Th

Fr

Sa

7
14
21
28

1
8
15
22
29

2
9
16
23
30

3
10
17
24
31

4
11
18
25

5
12
19
26

Su
3
10
17
24

Mo
4
11
18
25

Tu

We

5
12
19
26

6
13
20
27

7

Sa

1
8
15
22

2
9
16
23

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

Jan 1, 19

2

3

4

5

9

10

11

12

8

9:00am RWA-Board Mtg
(@ RWA)

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Civil Rights Leaders Day
(Holiday)

Civil Rights Leaders Day;
Holiday

27

28
7:00pm Board Meeting
(Board Room)

7
14
21
28

Fr

TUESDAY

New Year's Day
(Holiday)

6

Th

8:30am RWA-Exec
Comm Mtg @ RWA

29

30

31
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BOARD REPRESENTATIVES
COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS
Effective: January 2018
Updated: October 2018
CARMICHAEL WATER DISTRICT
STANDING COMMITTEES:
Compensation Committee
Paul Selsky (Term FY 2017-2019); Roy Leidy (Term FY 2018-2020)
Finance Committee
Roy Leidy (Term FY 2017-2019); Mark Emmerson (Term FY 2018-2020)
Water Sales Committee
Mark Emmerson (Term FY 2016-2019); Ron Greenwood (Term FY 2018-2021)
ADHOC COMMITTEES:
FOWD/CWD 2x2 Committee
Mark Emmerson; Paul Selsky
OTHER MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEES (meetings/year)
ASSOCIATION CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES:
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (2)
Mark Emmerson (Representative)
Region 4 Vice Chair (18)
Mark Emmerson (Representative, Term 2018-2019)
Region 4 Energy Committee (4)
Ron Greenwood (Representative, Term 2018-2019)
Region 4 Local Government Committee (2)
Ron Greenwood (Representative, Term 2018-2019)
Region 4 Water Management Committee (3)
Paul Selsky (Representative, Term 2018-2019)
CALIFORNIA-OREGON TRANSMISSION PROJECT (4)
Mark Emmerson (Representative)
GROUNDWATER RESOURCES ASSOCIATION
Roy Leidy (Representative); Steve Nugent (Alternate)
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY:
Board of Directors (12)
Ron Greenwood (Representative); Steve Nugent (Representative); Paul Selsky (Alternate)
Executive Committee (12)
Ron Greenwood (Representative, Term 2018)
SACRAMENTO GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY (6)
Roy Leidy (Representative, Term 2018-2022); Mark Emmerson (Alternate)
WATER FORUMS SUCCESSOR EFFORT (4)
Roy Leidy (Representative); Steve Nugent (Representative); Ron Greenwood (Alternate)

